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Corporate Governance Statement

Corporate governance i the process by which benks sre direcled and controlled with the chieclive of increasing sharcholders
valug and safisfying shareholdars. This i3 achieved by astablishing & system of ceaty defined authontes and responsiblities
whilch resull in the system of intarnal contrals that is regulany tesfed to enaurs afectvensass,

Tha Bank iz eammiited o the principles of eorporale governancs and conducls (k& Busness in accordanca with generally
gocepied best practioss, The Bank has inlensified foous on regulations, compliance, standardization and profesaionakam 1o lay
atrong faundation for affective corporate governanca. Thansfore the Dirscton conliom that:

= Tha meetings of Board of Direciors are held at least once in a guartar,

=  The affsirs of the Bank are regulerly being monilored by the Committees of the Board by holding meelings &t leasi once
A Qearias,

¢ Tha positions of Chairman and Managing Director are hald by differand parsons.

= The Board with thelr knowiedge and vast professlonal expenence are supplementing the performance of the Bank by
exBCUbWE managamanl

In the year wnder roview, the Bank comgplied with afl appicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines on corporate
pEVArEACE,

The Bank's govarnance frameswork anables the Bank's Boards to fulfil the role of proviging ovarsight and stategio counsal in
balance with its sesponsbility 10 ensure conformance wih regulatony requirements and rsk tolerancs, |t also provides Ba
paramesiers for delegating authonty.

Board of Directors
Board chartar and work plan

Thia compositon of the Board 5 set oul on page 2. The Board comgrisas of four non-exacutive diraciors, Hwo axecutiea
directors and is chafred by 8 non-sxecutive Chadparson. Al nor-eeecullve direciors are independernt of management. The
Baard has varied and écctonsiva skils in the areas of banking, business managamsant, accountancy and infperration
communication and echnology, The directors’ responsibiliies are set out in the slatameant of directors responsibilfties o pags
12. The Dereclors are respongible for the devalopmant of intermal financial contrals which provide safequards against materal
missialements and fraud and akso for ie fair presentation of the financeal statemants.

Tha Chairparson provides the overall leadarship to the Board withouwt limdieg the principlo of collactive responsibiity for Baand
decisions. Tha Chaiparson acts as the ik bebwsan the Board and the Managing Dirscior and plays 2 lead mle i conssnsus
biilding babaan tha Board mambers. the Managing Direcier and Senior Management Tha Chairperson has the casting wobe
an all decisions of the Board, The Board has delegated the autherity for day 1o day management to the Managng Direclor, It
howavar retains the overall responability for financial and operaling decsions and monitoring pedormance ol Sanior
Menagement.

The ey function of the Boand is the identification of curmant and future rsks including cperaticnal sk, Nouidity rsk, regulatony
risks, begal risk, reputalional dsk, market risk and copdil risk and 10 ensure that tha necessary sysiems and contrals ang in place
be enahbls such riska o be measured, confrofad and efechively monilored. The Board has estabishad a managemeant struciune,
which clearly defines roles, respansibilitias and reporting lines. Directors are required to disclose all areas of conflic of interast
be the: Board and ane excluded from voling on such areas of confinid. The Board has access 1o the company secretarny and lagal
caunsal

Commiiiess of the board

Tne Soard has apponiad vanous sub-commiti=es 1o wihich i has delagaisd cerain responsibiidies wilth ihe chasman of he
sub-commitiees saporing o the Boand. The apecific maliers for which delegated authority has been gven ane sel oul i each
Board Commites's terms of reference, which ane reviawad anmially

Tha Baard had delagated authonty 1o fée principall Board Committaes:

Board Al Comméilies
=  Board Cradi Commilbes
+  Baoard Risk Managamant Commistes
= Baoard Assets and Liahiities Commilbea
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= Board Compansation Commitiss
These commibees msel al laast on a quanisrly basis or whenaver there a'e urgend maflers 1o altend to,

A Diractors recerss regular and timealy Irformation aboul the Bank peior 1o Board mealings They also have access o ihe
Compmry Secrelery for any lurther nfcemation thay may regquire, Direciors have unresiricied access lo managerent and lhe
Bank infarmation as wall a5 resources required o carmy out iheir roles and respensibiliies,

Board meatings

The Nl Board meats 5t keast four Umas & year. The Boarnd daals with all significar maters incuding strateglc direction for the
Bank anauring compalant managemanl of the bugness; inlamal comrol, cormpliancs with laws and regulations and reparing
parformance to shareholdars.

During the year under réview, the Board meatings wers held on the fokowing dates:
« March 21, 2022
« Jmadt, 2022

+« Saptambaer 20, 20232
= Dscamber 21, 2022

Intemal confrols and risk management
Intarnal comtrod

Tha directors are esponsible for reviawing tha effectivensss of thae Bank's systemn of inffermal condral, incuding internal inancial
cantral. This i§ designed 1o piovide reasonable, bl aob sbeolute, assurincs regarding (a) the saleguarding of assals against
unauthorzed use or disposition and (b} The malntenance of proper accounting reconss and the refability of inancial infarmation
used wilhin tha business ar for pubkcalion. These controls are dessgned 1o manage rather than ebminate e riak of failune 1o
achleve business objeclives dus to clrcumstances which may reasonably De foressan and can oy provios reasonalbde and nat
atsolste assurance agalnst matarial misstalement or lasa.

Internal contral framework

Effeclive corporate governance remaing key o the busamess. The Bank conlinues 1o review its interngl conbrol frameweark 1o
arsine it mainlaing a strong and efactive intemal conbrol environmenl. The effeclivansss of the framawork has been under
regular raviaw by tha senicr management.

Director's remuneration

Tha remunerason b all directors is based on the responsiniibes allocated oo e directors, Bnd i Subject to reguler review D
ersure thal it adeguatsly companzates them for the lime apenl on lhe afairs of the bank The resmunaration paid b Me
direciors and key managemeant stafl s disciosad in Mate 25 1o the finencial slatemeants

Rizsk managamant

Tha Bank hes a sfruciure Bmnd process 1o help denlify, assess and manage fiska, This process has been in place hrowghaou
the yaar,

Corporate social responsibdlity

Bank al indka (Uganda) Limited is commitled to the communty i which || sparates. During the year ended December 31, 2022,
the Bank contribuled funds towards good Causes.

Relations with the shareholder
The Board recognizes e mporance of pood communication with all sharenalders, Tha Annuad Genaral Maaling[AGM] as well

as the pubished annual report is used as an oppofunity b communicade with all shaseholdess, The Bank gives sharaholkiers
21 days nolics fof the AGH as provided for in the Companies Act, 2012,
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Directors' Report

Thie dreciors have pleasure in submitting their report tagether with the audited finansal statements of Bank of India (Uganda)
Lirited (Mthe Bank™) for the year ended Docember 31, 2022, which disclosa ihe state of affairs of the Bank

incorpomation and sormmoncament of business

Tha Banw, was incorporated on Movemeber 8, 2010, 1| was granted a banking §cense by Bank of Ugands on Mareh 13, 2042
and commanced operations on June 18, 2012 Bank of India (Uganda) Limited & a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of India, &
rencwned Iromational Bank spread across the giobe and has more than 5,000 branches in India.

1. Mature of businass

The Bank is principally engaged @ the business of providing commercial banking sanvices io the general public. The Bank is a
financiad institutfion reguiated by Bank of Uganda (Bol) and licensed under the Financial Instilutions Act, 2004, and as
amended to conduct commerclal banking busness.

Thara hauws baan Ao maberial changes 1o tha natura of ta Bank's businass fram the pror yaar,
Z. Business review
During the year 2023, the tolal intereal nocome of fe Bank Inceased from LShs 30,157 million to UShs 31,370 million. The

Increass wag maindy aliibbed to the increase n the interest income frem invesimants made In govennment sacurities. The
profit bafors tax incraased from LISha 10,388 millon o UShe 13 278 milion reflecting the effects of cost control axpandisura.

Key performance indicators 2022 2021
UShs 000 UShs "000
Interast incoma 31,369,764 30,197,342
et interast incoms 20,180,693 18,438,354
Profii for the vear 0041 1594 440 807
Mol assels) bolal equity &4, 758,194 H4. 717000
Return on capital employed (%) 1% 19%
Resulis

The mesults of tha Barx for the year ended December 31, 2022 ame sel out in the stalement of pofil or loss and other
comprehendive income on page 16 and the apprapriations thare from in the statemen of changas in equity an page 16,

3. Share capital

Fa k) 2021

Athorised Numbar of shares
Ordirary shares 2,700,000 & 00, B0

2023 2021 2022 2021

leguad UShs ‘000 UiSha "0 0g Humber af shares
Crdirary shares 27000000 #7000 000 2 700,600 2,700, 0a1

There have bean no changes 1o the authorised o laued shame capital during tha year under reyiew
4. Dividends

Mo dividenics wers declared o paid o the shareholders during the year,

B. Principal risks and uncertalnties

The overall business anvironment continues o remain challenging and but this has not had a materal resultant effect on
overall demand for the bank's sanvices. The Bank's sirslegic foous is o enhance revanus growth whilst maintaining proft
marging, the suscess of which refmains dependent on overall markel conditions and ofher fBciors such 85 e impact of Tha
cororavinus outbreak. The direciors canfirue bo monitor this sibuation closely with & view to essassing and mitigating its impact
an tha Bank,
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The direlors in office at the data of this report ane as follows:

Diractors Mationality Changes

M. Wenceslaus Rama Makuzs Ugandan

Mz, Mayenga Rosetti Nebbumba Upandan

Ms. Monica Mubazi Kalico Ugandan

M. Vikash Krishng Indtiar Resgnad on March 3, 2023

M. Ranjan Kumnar Irecdian Resgrad on January 4, 2023, 2023
Kr. Sanjay Kumar Khamka Indizn Appainted on March 4, 2023

kir. Semeer Ranjan Bahera Indian Appainked on Janaary 5 2023

7. Direciors” benefits

During the parlod since tha lasl Arnual Gensral MesSng of members ko the date of this report, no Direcior has recalved or
becoma arnfitled to recelve any benafit other than Direciors’ fess and amoursiliosances faceived under amploymand
confracts for Exeoutive Directors. The aggregate amount of emoluments for Direciors’ services randened in (he firancial year is
discicead under Mote 25 1o fhe financial statements, Naither ai fw end of the financial year nor at any tima duing the year did
thers axiet amy emangement to which the instinution 13 & party whetely Deactors might acquire banefits by means of tha
asguisition of shares of dabanlures of the Bark or any other body corparals

8, Capital adaguacy

Tha Bank monitors the adegquacy of its capead using ratios establishad by the Financial Instiutons Act, 2004 as amended,
Thase ratics measune capital adequacy by comparng the Bank's elighée capital with [ts atatemend of inancial posillon assels
and off-statement of financial positon commitmants at & walghted amoun o reflect thair relative sk

Assals are weighted according |o brosd categones of notional crodil risk. being assigned a risk welghting according 1o tha
amount of capital deemed to e naceesary to suppont them:  Four categaries of risk wesghts (0%, 20%, 50% and 100%] ars
applied, 0.9, MNotas, coins and other cash assats, balances hald with Bank of Uganda including securities issued by the
Government of Upanda and securitias hald under the Bank of Uganda have 8 2ero rlak wakghting, which means thal no cagital
i5 required to support tha kelding of these asaats. Loans and Advances, Property snd squiamant ceery 8 100% sk weghting,
Based on thie existing gusdalinegs: this means fhat they must be suppored by capital aqual bs 100% of tha risk waighlad amauni
Criheer azsal cabagories have Intermediete walghtings

Core caplial (Tier 1) conglsis of paid-up sharg capilal, ratained profils less non-dealing investments. Suppbementary
capilal (Tiar 2} includas revalualion resarsmss on proparly, unencumbsened gensal prosions snd nion-dealing nvestments,

Disclesures in respect to capdal managemant and caphal adeguacy ralios are set oul in Make 3,
8. Opersting and regulatory environments
Operating envircnmant

The Ugandan sconomy grew ¢ 4.6% during yoar 2022 faster than had been anficipated dus to an uptick in activity after the
BCONKTY recpaned in January 2022 On the supply sida, sarvices and indusiny wens the main drivers of economic growth.
There was also sirong recavery in wholssale and ratall trade, real estate and education, with industry rebounding through
canssruction and manutacburing, On the dermand side, private vestmeant snd privabs corsumption headed lowmrds pre-CO0YID
levals. The current account defick widensd to over 9% of GDP, primarlly reffecting » delarsration in the tsrms of ade and
wider Irade deficit

Widh highar prices and policy Bghtening, growtn in real consumption slowed, possitly becauss of reduced purchasing power,
limited credit growth, and job lossea. Employment fell Bfar the sacond lackdown in June 2021 and remained al the same level
undll July 2022 Uganda's post pandemic recovery hes been disruptsd by several shosks. The sconomy continues io suffer
fram adwarse spll owers from tha Russla-Likaine war induced high global commodity prices, tight global financial condifions,
and adverss weather condiions, The effects of the decads long high inflation cawsed by theas shocks and the assocabed
Eghtening of damastc inancial condfions tiggered ame squeazing corsumers inte difficult lving conditions and businesses ints

Eght operating condiiors. The difficull $iuaton B exering damaging effects on businass and cansumar confidance. and
apgregale demand,
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The rate of eccnomic growth could rise o over 6% in tha medum-term despile susiained commodity prce-driven mflation
pressures, gradual Fseal consolidation, and fighier monetany policy. Growth will banefit from a gradual increese in investmants

In e ol Sector &nd any Shvigends Trom the givemments promolion effers for tourism, expon diversification, and agro
indusirializalion,

Exchange rate

The Liganda Shilling ramained ralatively stable againgd the dollar during the yaar 2022 and strangthenad at the {ail end
supgariad by light Bguidily condilicns in the money markets and inflows from affehoras and seasanal inflows from remittances,
coffes receints and NGOs and due o the essing of the strengthening of the US dollar giobally, Year-on-year, the Uganda
shiling was 5.0 parcent waaker, Tha yeaf opansd with 8 laraign exchange rale of UShe 3 545 par LIS Dollar in the month of
Jamary 2022 and tha same was averaged at LIShs 3,713 per LS Dollar during the year and chosed &l LIShs 3,730 per LS
Doffar a4 the end of Decembar 2022,

Reguiatery environmeant

Tha regulatary framewor by Bank of Uiganda continues to evalve and mprove. The delibarate meve by regulaions actoss the
Afrcan confinant 1o anhance their inleraction & supected o see modificaton and/or enhancemsants to ow domestic regulaton
The spacific harmonization arcund the EAC parines states on various areas of regulation & also expected o increaze Inondar
i ansure compéianca with all key extarnal legislation we have scaled up the capacty end capability inour Compilatce functian
that ponidies oversight and guidance on all compliance matters. However, mare Imgarantly, we heve focused on bullding &
cuitture of compliance across the Bank. &t the com of this culture is that al staff must comma to iving the comne values of

the Bank and hawing this massege of individual accourtabiity well undarstood acrose fhe Bank, We confinue b0 ensura that our
standing with the megulators remamns strong

O Movemiber 16, 2022, Bank of Uganda lssued a cireular notifying financial insttutions of 8 proposed Increasa the minimal
capltal requirements for supervised financial instilutons ingluding commarciad banks, credit instibstions and mico deposit
taking institutions, Tha new propasad increased minimum capital raguiramant for Tiar | commenzial bank incraased from UShs
25 billian ta LUShs 1230 billion by and of Dacembar 31, 20232 and UShe 150 hillion by erd of Juna 30, 2024

10 Corporale governance

Tha Bank's Corporate Govemnance philosophy encompasses nod only mguiaiony and legal equirements, bul also severs best
praciices aimad af a high leval of business athics, affective supervision and anhancemani of valua for all the siakano'dars. The
corparata govarnanca framawork is based on an afectve and indaperdant Baard, the separation of tha Baard's supandsnory
rode from (ke Execulive Managamant and the constitution of Board Committeas comprising a majority of indepandant Non-
Essculhe Directons and chaired by an independent Dwadlor, o ovarsee all funchonal areas. We believe thal exceliance
emanales fram good governance, farefore, we have adopted high standard of ransgarency and sccountatility,
professionalism and social responsivenass with improved customes focus 1o mantein a value diven organization.

11. Evants aftar tha raperting pariod

Subsaquent to the year and, an Januasy 4, 2023 the shamsholders of the Bank apoaoved conversion of existing relamsd
eamings of UShs 26,500,000 thousand into pald-sp capltal by wey of lssuance of bonus shares.

Tha directars sre not aware of any athar matenal event which ccowmed after tha reparing date and up 1o tha date of this regaodt
which requires adusimanis to or disclosures n ibe accompanying financial statemants,

12  Indepandant Auditor

Grant Thomion Cerlified Putlic Accountienis ware appoinied as sialutory auditors of the Bank & scoordance with Section
1EF{1) of Ihe Companies Aci, 2017 and wera duly approved by the Bank of Uganda in sccordancs with Section 62 of the
Finarcial Insliutiens Acl, 2004, and a3 amended,

Grand Thomton Cedified Public Accountants have expressed $edr willingress to continue as audilors of the Bans in
accordance with Saclion 167(2) of the Companies Act, 2012,
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13. Secratary

The company socrélary is Miss Wagabaza £ Co. Advocates whese registared office is at PO Bex 255840, Kempala, Uganda.

14, Approval of financial statements

Tho financial stalemonts sat aut on pages 16 to BS, which have bean propared an the going concarn basis wane apgraved by
the bBaard of dinsciors on F'-:— o] 25 dead

By Order of the Board
i

- Wslqnuture

DVOCATES

Wagabaza & Co. Advocales

Company Secralary

Dete:. P | 35, T3S
Place: Kampala, Uganda

it
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

Tha Dirsciors ang requirad in terms of the Companies Act, 2012 and the Fingneial Instiliticns fct 2004, and as amanded, o
malniain adaduate ascounting records and are responsible for the content and ntegrily af e fnandal stalesrens and retatad
Nnandial information Included in this report. It is their responsibility o ensure that the financial statements lasly present the
slate of affsirs of e Bank as st he end of the financial year and the results of it= oparatons and cash Mows for the periad thien
anded, i confermity with Infamaticnal Finandal Reporting Standards,

The financial statarments of Bank of Inda (UWganda) Limiled (“the Bank™) are prepared in accordance with Inlarnational Financial

Reporting Standards and are based upon appropriate accouniing polices corsistertly applied end supparted by raasanable
and prudent judgerments and estimales

The Directors acknowdedge thal they are ullimately responsible far the system of intemal inancial control establishad by the
Bank and place consideradla Imporance sn malintaining & strong cortrol enviianment. To anable the Directors fo meel these
responshiliies, the board of direciors sets siandards for intermal cortrod aimad al reducing the sk of emror or loss in a cost
effeciive manner, The slandards include the proper delegaton of responsibdties within a clearly delined amework, affective
sreounling procedurss and adegquaky ssgregaticon of duties 1o ensure an sccaplatie bavel of k. Theds Controls are monitred
throughaul tha Bank ard all empioysas are required bo maintain the highest athical standards o enauring the Bank's buslness
Is. copducied i a mannes hal in 8 reascnable crcumstances (s abows reproach. The focus of sk management in the Bank is
on iantifying, assassing. managing and monibaring all known forms of ek seross he Bank, Whie aperafonal risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the Bank andeavours to minimise it by ensuwing that aporopriate infrasiructurs, controls, sysbers and ddhical
behavour are appiied and managed within predebermanod procedunes and constramts.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the infermation and explanalions green by managemant, that the system of Intermal
control provides reasonable assuramos thed the finenclal records may be mlied on for the preparation of the financial
slemants. Howaver, any system of intemal Snancial comtrol can provide only reasonable, and nod absalule, assurance
Apaing! malerial misstalement or loss.

The indegandent audor was given unreslicted accesa 1o all inancial records and related information, inchuding minutes of
maetings of hareholdars, he Board of Dirrctors and board commitlees. The Dirmctors believs that all reprasentaions made ta
tha indapandant audior during the audi are valkd and appragrials.

Mathing has come o the atertion of the Directors to indicate that the Bark will nof remain a gomg concem for at least nasd
twmive months fron he date of his siatsmant

The financled staterments set oul on pages 18 1o 55, which have been preparad on the going concam basis, ware approved by
the board gFdireciors on Plp| g5 ama 3 and wers sagned an its behall by

Wanceslaus Rama Makuza Sanjay Kumar Khambka
Managing Director

Date: il 25 2080

Placs: H.i.l'TIF-ﬂ-I.UFI‘II'I
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the mambers af Bank of India (Uganda) Limitad
Feport on the Audit of the Financial Statemanis
Opinlon

Wa have audited the financial statements of Bank of India (Uganda) LimAad (*the Bank®) sat out on pagas 16 10 55, which
comprige the statement of financial posifion as at Cecemibar 11, 2022, and the statemaent of profit or loss and the Glier
comprehansive income, the siatement of changes in equity amd the stadermeni of caesh flows for the year fhen ended, and
noton bo tha Brancial statemants, induding a summarny of sigaificant accounting polcies.

In aur opinlon, the Nnancial statameams present fairy, (n all maiedal respacia. tha financial position of Bank of India (Ugande)
Limited as at Decembsr 31, 2022, end iz financal peformance and cash flows Tor the year than ended in accordarce with
Imamatonal Financial Raporting Standards (IFRSs), the mquirements of he Companies Act, 2013 and fhi Financial
Institutions Act, 2004, and as amended.

Basis for cpinion

We conducted ow audd in accoedanca with Intamationa! Standards on Auditing (ISAsz). Ouer responsbiliies under thoss
stancards are furhar described in tha Awditor's resporsibéties ior e audit of the financal statemenia secion of our repor
‘Wa ars indapancant of tha Bark In sccardanca with the IMamabional Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of
Ethice for Professlonal Accountants {Including Intarnational Indepandance Siandards) (Pats 1 and 3} (IESEA Code) and
offer independence requiraments spplicable to performing audits of finencial stalements in Ugenda. We have Tulfilled our
alfver ethical responsibiities in accordance wih the IES8A Code ard In aceordance with other athical requiremants
applicable to performing audits In Uganda. Wa balleve that the audt evidance we have abitainad is sufficant and appropeiats
o provide & basis for our opindon.

Hey audit matter
Key sudit matlses are those matters thal, In cur professional judgement. ware of mast significanca in ouwr audit of the

financial statamants of e current year. This maner was adorassed in the contaxt of cur awdit of e financal saisments as
a whala, and In forming ouwr opinlon thereon. and we do not provide @ separate opinion on this matiar,

Hay audit matier How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit losses on loans and advances to Cur audt procedures included understanding and testing o
custHmers Ihe design, implemeniation and cperaling effectivensss of (he
oy confrols ovor the following:
Wa considered fhis @3 8 key audit mafer in view of tha al Conlrols over approsing, recarding and monitoring of lcans
complex  and  subjective judgmerts exsrcised by the and advances:
Directors i estimating the provision for Expectsd Credi
Losses (ECGL) on loans and advances. b} Gonirols over iha akocason of inans and advances o
slagas; ard
In addresaing this aea, we focused on the Tolowing:
o The gawamance process of loans downgrading, Incleding
s MAllccafion of loans and advancas 1o stage 1, 2, or 3 in the confnuous r-assessment of the appropriafensss of
apcardance with IFRS 9 assumgtions used In for datesmining the iImpesrment
abrwance.
* . SSRGS, STNISIG $iul RN v Ciur teatng of the design, implemsantation and opsrating
bulid and nun tha modals that calculate the ECGL; and alfactiriecan of T confrgs providen i i for v A0
cantnue with the plannad natire, iming and extent ol cur

= Appropristaress and comploteness of ovaerlays and audi p :

avarrides apphiad within the ECL caleulatian to adust far
knawn daficisncies Our prosedures to addaes the slavabed nbatwnt Ask in ESL

- an nans and advanses b cuslamen inclutad the fallowing
Ax diaciosad 0 poles 1.9 & 14 of the finencs’ statameants,

the Directars have estmeted a provision for ECL on 10an% 5 e ghtained an undarstanding of tha Bank's credit paicy
and pdvances b customers of UShs 5,311,255 thousand 81 goq ooaiiiaiad tha procasses lor identifying imgairment

compilanca o0 the classification

b} We selacled samples of ldans sonsidaring the tokal
expasune, eka, industy renids, etc. For salected samples,

Offics: 3 Fiooe, Logogo Ona, Pl 2), Legopd Brpess, PO Box T153, Kameala, Ugares
T +26§ J51 266001, 236 00 807310 E muthiDug ghoom

Certified Public Accountants

Member of Gram Thormrion Irmermational Limited

Al Patel (ledain), Jarmng Shan |IndiEe ). Milesh Fael (ngian), Lbday Bfales (hdan)

The e & hemnasd and reguiabsd by ihe Inalitvie of Cenified Publc Accountants of Liganda

Regmsiration Mamber. AFDIGSS




Independent Auditor's Report

Kooy audit malier

we hawve verified the iotal exposure, value af sacurily,
financisl perfoamence and banking of bomowers during the
year;

¢} We assessed Directors' Inmeast of recovarable cash
flows, valuation of collaterais, astimates of recovery on
detaull and ather sources of rpaymant. W ewvakaied the
corsislaney of Key assumplions applied, benchmaring these
1o o vam uncerstanding of the relevant indusiries and
businsas enviranments, ko pssess the validity af the colajeral
valualions. Wae ré-compuled Dereciors’ calculalion of b
Impaimenl allowences o chack the accuracy and
complataness of data captured In tha ECL modad;

d]¥e teaied & sermple of the dats used in he Models a5 weit
as aasasaing the modsl methadology and lested the
calculations within the modsts;

o) 'We assessed whalher the modaling assumpdions used
conaitarad all ralevan raks. We alan lesled e axiracion

from undedying sysiesra of histonca data wsed in the
mindale;

1 'We invalvad our |T specialists in ke areas that required

spacilic axperisa bar confiming accuracy and comgletaness
of the Giata usad for ECL model; ang

Q) Wa assessed the adequacy and approprnatenass of
disclosures m the francial stalemants

Based on our audil prooeduiras, we did not idenbfy any
am&pﬂms thEt wondld resull inomatadial massiataasent o ihe
fnancial slalemeants.

O matter

The fnancial statermenis of tha Bank far the year anded December 31, 2021 were audited by another audfor who expressed
an urmodified apinlon an those slalerments on Aarl 21, 2022

Orihver infarmation

The Directars are respansibie for the olher information, Tha oiber infarmation compeses of informalions on gagas 2 o 19,
Cithar information doas nof include the Finandal Statemenis and our auditor's repor thereon

Cr opinion on the francial sEterments does nol cover the ofber informalion and we do not espress an eadil opinion of any
Farm ol asssrances Concussan theraon

In connection with owr audit of the inancial sladwments, our respongibility is bo read the other infarmation and, |6 daing S0,
eongider whether the alhel information is matersally inconsistent with the financal statements or our knowladpe obiained n
the Audi, or oiharsisa sppean o ba malerialy misstaied. I, basad on he work we nave perfommad, we conclessa that thene
is & maledal misslabament of B other nlcamabion, we arg raguered b report thad lacl We have nothing o repod In this
ragarnd

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial staternents

The Direclors are responsie for the preparation and lalr presentation of the finandal stalements in aceordance wii
Inlersational Financis! Reporting Stendargds and in o mannar required by the Compandes Act, 2013 and the Finangial
Inshilutiona Act, 2004 and as amanded and for such intemal conbml as the Dieclors determine s necassary o enable the
praparaiion of financial statements thatl are free from materal missiatement. whathar dua to fraud or ermor

In pregadng he Enancial atalements, e Direclore are respondible far aggessing the Bank's ability to continee 35 & qoing
cancerm, dsclosing, &s agplicable, matiers relabed jo going concem and using W gong concern basis of accounting unless
thia Biraciors aithar intend fo liguidate the Bank or 10 coasa cpartions, of have no realistic afemative bt o do 2o

13



Independent Auditor's Report

Busditor's responsibdities for the audit of the financial statemeants

Our objectives ang 1o oblain réasonabde assurance aboul whether the finemcizé statements ag 8 whole are fres from maiestal
misstatement, whether dug o fawd or error, and to issue an guditor's report that includes ow optneon. Reasonabs
assuranca is a high leved of assuranca, but is not @ guerantes thet an awidl conducied in sccordance with Intematicnal
Standards on Auditing wifl alwaye defect a meteral mizstatement when T exiaiz. Misslalamenis can arise fram frawd or arror
and are consikdersd malarial i, indhvidually or in aggregate, thay could reasomably be expected o influgnce the aconomic
dacisions of wsers iaken on the basiz of thesa firancial statements.

Az parl ol Bn audil in eccordance with Intematonal Standands an Audiiing, we ecemcise prodessional [udgamant and maintain
prnl‘aulm soaphziem hreughoul the awdit. 'We also:

identify and easess e raks of maleral misstatement of tha Fnancial statements, whethar due to fraud or error,
design and parform audit proceduras responsive o Mose risks, and oblain pudil evidence thal is sufcient and
approptiate fo provide a basls for our opinion. Tha msk of nol detacting & matedal misstatament resulting froem
Traned 19 highes fan lor one resulling from eeror, as fraud may Bvoive colfusion, forgery, Inendioral smissions,
masresprasentations, ar the overnde of inbernal contral

® Cibtain an undenstianding of intermal cortrol felewant b B aud? in ordar to dasign awdit procadures that ane
approprate in the circumstances, but mat for the purpose of expressing an oplnion o the eMectivenass ol the
kank's intarnal conbrol

#  Evaluale fhe appropristenass of accountng policies used and the mascnablaness of accounting esfimates and
related disclosures mads by he direcions

=  Concheda on the appropratasess of the Directors’ use of the going conoem basss of accgunting and based on the
audit evidance abfained, whether a8 materal uncertalnty exists relafed fo events or condSons that may cast
sigrificant doubl on the Bank"s abiity to continue as a going concem.  we conclude that 8 matarial uncartainty
Exials, we are requred 1o draw attanlion in our audiler's repart to the relaled desclosures in the fnancial
staiemmenis ar, If swsh disclosures are ingdequate, bo modity our opiresn, Dur conclusions ara Based on the awdl
evidance abtained up lo the date of owr ewditinrs regarl. However, luburs svents or condilions may causs he bank
to cease to continug as 8 gaing concem

= Ewaluate the owerall presantation, structure and content of the financial staftements, Including the disclosunaes, and
whathar tha fnancial stalements reprasent the underying fransactions and evenis in 2 mannar that achieves fair
presemtation.

W communscate waih the Directors regarding, among olhes matters, the plarned scope and tmang of the sudit and
signifcant audh findings, including any significant deficancies ininlermal conirol that we Mentify duing our swdd

Wil also prdvide the direciors with a siatemant thad we hawva complied with relevant ethicel requirements regarding

indepandarce, and (o communicate with thm all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thowght o bear on
our indepandance, sad whare appicaile, relabed salaguands.

From the matters communicatad with the Directors, wa dalarming thosa maltars (hal were o mest significancs R fhie audit of
the financial statemants of the curmend year and are tharefore the key sudit mattars. \We describe these matiers inoour
auditor's repord unless law of ragulation precliedes publc disclosure abouf the mabter or when, In estremely rare
cirftumsiances, we dalerming e a matier shauld not be communicated 0 our repen becausa the adverse conseguences of
daing 26 would reassnably be expoected to outwelgh the public intereat benefis of such communication

14



Independent Auditor's Report

Rapart an ather legal and regulatory raquiremants

A rmumd by the Comparias Act, 2012 wa repert £ you, basad on our sudit that:
we have cbieined all the information and axplanations, which to Bie best af our krowledge and beSel wera
necessary for the purpose of our awdd,
in our apirian, proper books of account have been kepl by the Bank, so far a5 appears from our examination of
thosa books; and
*  Iha bank's sistement of financial pesition and statamant of profil of lage and ether comprohongive income & in
agrearmanl wilh the books of acoount

agement panne an the audd rezulting in this Indepandant swditods report is CPA Uday Bhalars - P44,

PodTa

én{ Tharnton

Certified Public Accountants

ﬂ“g;ﬂ'_ﬁ_mu
Ka la, Uganda




Bank of India (Uganda) Limited
Annual repart and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Total comprabansive incoma for the year

The natas on pages A3 o 55 form an inlograd pad of the finandial statements

2022 2021
Mote UShs 000 UShs ‘000
Imaras] ncame 4 31,365, T4 bR P T )
Inierast expense g (11,183,074} (11,758 588)
Mt interest Incoma 20,180,683 14,438 354
Fean inberas] Incoma -3 3,302 285 1,691,228
Oparaling sxpangss 7 (9,348,340 (8,808 BRI
Imparmment allcwence on financial assets 14 (BSS.279) (2822175
Frofii before taxation 13,279,380 10,398,524
Taxaton a8 {3,238,17E) (26T 918)
Profit for the yaar 10,047,194 3,940,606
Other comprahansive Roome - .

10,041,104 5,540,606
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Arirmsal report and Mnancial statements 150 Ihe yaar ended December 31, 2022

Statement of Financial Position

20z2 2021

Hote UsShs "000 LIShs "Bi0
Adspels
Cash and balances with Bank, of Uganda 10 43,104 . 296 34,658,496
Invesiment in gowernment securlies ¥ 71,316,102 69 410 494
Due fram group eempanies 12 3,745,315 1,204,538
Deposits and balances duws from athar financlal institutions 13 S)227.899 61136460
Loans and advancas io cusbameans 14 187,128,273 181747057
Crthuar aesats 15 459,196 B11.802
Ciurrent tax racedvaila 16 . 5A5.941
Defared tax azsal W7 2,220,805 1,824 258
Propery. aguiprment s fighl-of-use assats T3 f.508.413 6,469 608
Tolal Asseis 356,918,803  3E2,799.050
Equity and Liahilitles
Equity
Share capital 19 27,000, 00 27,000,000
Reguatory peneral cradil risk rmserve B40,454 1,173.324
Retained samings BT TA0 PES43IATE
Total Equity 64,758,194 54 7T17,000
Liabilities
Deposil and balances dus to other financial institutions 13 120000608 13835 657
Current tax payatle 18 1,260 610 -
Due fo growp companlas 21 57049, 802 58,720,004
Custoemer daposits x2 222235318 224,543,264
Oilar lighivhes 23 afni4 e 12,975,024
Total LiabMles 30t 160,608 308,082,050
Total Equity and Lisbilities 366,918,803 362,700,050

Tha financle! siatemeants on pages 18 b 55, ware approved by the board of directors and awthonsed for lssue on the

Pope.l 35 2033 and wera signed on its behall by

F—1

Tha notes on pages 20 10 55 farm &n inlegral par ol the nancial stslemenls

Sanjay Kumar Khemka
Managing Direstar
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited
Anmual report and financal statements for the year ended Decamber 31, 2022

Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital Regulatory Relained  Total equity
geners] credll  samings
rizh reasrve
UShs 000  UShs ‘D00 UShs ‘008  UShs D00

Batance at January 1, 2021 2T 000,000 950,850 16801235 44852080

Profit far e year . . 2,940, 606 9,940,606

Othar comprahanaive incooms - - - -

Total camprahansive incoma for the yaar - = 9,940,608 9,940,608

Transiar to reguiatory resermas (net of bax) ] FaH 189 (98, 168) .

Dihar adjusimenis - {73635 . {75,683)
Total transactions with owners . 227 ATA {208, 168) (75,605)
Balance at January 1, 2032 Z7,000,000 1,173,384  Z6543,876  84,717.000

Prafit tor the year . EOR L EE 3 b R B =

Giher comprabansne income . " - -
Total comprahansive Income for the year - « 10,041,194 10,041 194
Tranafer to regulasory reserses (nat of tax) - {332.8T0) 332 ETD -
Taotal fransactions with awners - [332,870) J3LETD -
Balanco at Docombaor 31, 2022 2T 000,000 BAG 454 36,917, 740 64,758 194

Mobe|s) 18 20

The notea on pages 20 1o 56 form an integrad pard of the financal statements.
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annusl report and financial statements for the year endad December 31, 2022

Statement of Cash Flows

2022 2024

Mot LESIes "0 UShs 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Inberest receipts a1.337.40 30,197 633
Intarest paymants (11,6834, 118)  (8.650.368)
et fees and commission recaipks 2 B25 650 2,280,411
Crhir inGome rechinnd 482 337 1410520
Payments o employess and suppliars (2.665.0M5) (10,380 303)
Changes In:
Lesing and adwvancas bo cusbomens (B,500,134)  (3.908.212)
Cash resarae guiremnent 3,218,913 (9468 913)
Crher assals 838,347 (3B8.017)
Creposits and balances die 1o other financial institutions (1,838,257 4 187957
Invasimant in govermmeant securiies maturing B0 days after dabe of acquisition (279,928) (6,059,887
Customer dagosis (1,284,044) 5 TAT.HTS
Due fo group companies 1,028,502 8,263,004
Cithar liahdiies Tz 204 4B5 BTE
Cash genarated from cperating activities & 156,624 4196473
Ineoimee tax pakd 16 (1,887.571) (1.298.317)
Mat cash ganerated from cperating astivities 6,156,624 4,158,473
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of proparty. agupment and right-of-use assats 18 {213,481} 12003, 344)
Sale of property, eguipment and nghl-afuse assats 18 14,308 3
Mot cash used in investing activiths {198,153 (208, 344)
Cash flows from financing activitiss
Dividand paid { 3,240,000
Het cash used in financing activities (3.240,900) %
Movemant in cash and cash eguivalants for the year 2.TiT AT 3,987,129
iCash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the yesar 75833280 62,863 160
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 78,650,760 66,650,280

The noles on pages 20 1o 55 form an Inlegral pad of the financial statements:
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited
Arnual mport and financial statemants for the year endad December 31, 2022

MNotes to the Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Bank of India (Uganda) Limited ("the Bank™) i & public limiled company incorporaied and domicited n Uganda. Tha Bank
slarbed s opematicns in Uganda on November 8, 2010,

The Bank i principally engaged in the provision of commaroial banking ssnices. Tha Bank has two branches and all ars
situated In Karmpata,

The Regstarad afice of the Benk =

Piat 37, Jinja Road,
PO Box T332
Kampala, Liganda,

1. Significant accounting policies
The principsl accounling palickes apalied 0 the preparation of these fmancial staiements are sai out belos,

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial slalemenls have been prepared on the gaing concerm besis macoordance with International Fmancial Reporting
Standarde ("IFRSs"), In the manner required by the Campanss Azl 2012 and the Financisl instiubions Acd, 2004 and oz
amanisd

The financial slatements have bean prepared on e ksl cosl convention, unless clhenwise slaled in the accounling policies
which foliow and Incorporaie the princigal acsounting policies set oul bedow, Thay are pressnied in Uganda Shillings [UShs),
which is the Bank's functional curancy. All amounts beve been munded 1o the rearest thausand, unlsss altherwiss indicated,

Thess accouniing policies are consistant with the pravious period except for the changes saf oul in nobe 2.
1.2 Critical judgesments and key sources al estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial ststemenis In conformity with IFRS requires managamarnt, from fime o §rne, 1o make judgernents,
astimates and assumplions that affect the applicathon of policles and repored amounts of scssta llabiities, ircome and
axpansas. These estimates and associated assumplions are based on expensnca and wanous othar factors thael amre belisved
o be reasonable ender the circumslances. Aclual results may differ from thesa estimates, The estmates and underiying
Essumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions 1o acoounting estimabes are fecognissd in e pariod in which fhe
estimates are revised and in any luture peviods affected. Eslimales and underfying asssmplions are reviewsed on an ongaing
basls. Ravisions o estimatas ans recognisad proapectiaely.

Kay sources of estimation uncertainty
Uzeful lives of property equipment and right-of-use assets

Managoemand reviews the wsalul Bves and residual values of the Hems of propary and eguipmant on a reguiar basis. During the
financial year, the direciors determined signfficant changes i he uselal lves and residual values. Assessmen) ol fhe wesefl
Ives of fve property and equipment was dona by the extemal consultant.

Wien (e eslimated usefl life of an asset differs from previoss ssliimates, he change = apolied prospechvely o the
dietammination of e depracialion charge.

Provision

Provigions are inherenlly based on assumplions and esbimates usng the bast informabon availabde. Maragemant makes
edtimales for fe grovisions, baded an Te historical dala available and resssesses Mem @l the end of every reporting period

Leasps

The significant judgerments in tha implamaniation were determining f & conbract contained a lease, and the delarmination of
whathar tha Bank is reazonably ceran that i will sxerciss awtension oobions present In l2ase contrects. The significant
estimates wane the determination of incremanial borowing mates in e respectiva economic emvircmments. The avarags
discount rate appiad ta lesss Babiliies wae 3,70% p.a for LS Dolar laass linbifties and 10.00%: p.a for Uganda Shilling laaze
lshilitias

Fall
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Bank of India (Uganda) Limited

Annus report and Ninancla: sialamants for the yesr anded Decermber 31, 20022

Motes to the Financial Statements

1.2 Crithcal judgements and key sources of astimation uncartalnty (confinuad)

impairment loases on leans and advances

Crifical estimates have been mads by the management in arrving &1 the discounted values of securilies in ardes o arrve al

g'lra impairmant charges for loans end advances. The calculation of impaiment involves key judgements made by the
rectars;

*  For individuaity significant finpncial asseis, the Bank consbdared judgemanis that have an impact on the aspacied
fidurs cash Aows of the assaf Thesa include, the business prospacis, industry and geopalitical cemata of tha customar,
reafizable value of collateral, the Bank's legal posifion, ebe, Many of the key judgement faclors have a degres of
Interdependency, hetafore a significant leval of judperment (s reguired.

. The diffarence beftwesn the loan camying amount and the dscountml egpected huture cash flows will msult in the
mmpaiment amourl The future cash flow caloulaticn imalwes significant judgemenis and astimatos. As new nformation
becomes svailable and further negotialonsforbearance measures are laken, the esfmaies of Be flure cash Nows will be
revisied, and will have an impact on the fubure cash flow analysis

r For financial assels which are nod individually sigrificant, which comphise a langs number of loans hal wih similar s
characierstica, statistical estimates and lechniques are used. These lechniques use models which snalyrs ssclor wise
histarical repaymenl and dafaull rates ower a padod of e years. Futher judgement is required to dalarmine whathar the
current economic climate. behavioral and credil conditions are such that e echual level of Incurred losses, and losses
inharant in the collactve porifolio is likely to be graater or bess than historical expenance, and is not fully reflactihe in tha
allcaance eslimaled through the use of statistical models and hiskoica data,

= The expecled loss ulilizes peobabilily of defeud and lsas given defaull inherant within the portfols of impaired loans o
receivables and the historcel loss expenance for assets with credt risk characteristics similer o those in one secior
Probability of default is defermined based on the Bank's infemal assessmant and customen’s cradil mling, no of days’ delay
in mpayment of duss

=  The Benk assessas al sach balance shesi dals whelher thers s abjective avidence that a financial asset is impainad, &
financal gesat 8 impaired and impalrment lossas e Incurred If there is abjective evidence of impairmant a8 & resul of ona
ar mong default events oocurring efter the Initlal recognitlon. 90 days or mare past due principle and inberast,

Taxation

Judgament s required in daterrening the provigion for income laxes due 1o tho complexity of legislation, Thare ars mary
transactons and calculations for which the ulimaie tax datermnation is unoetain durdng the ordinary oourse of businBss.
The Bank recognises Habiliies for anbicipstec fax awdll issues based on asfimales of whether addibonal faxes will be due.
Whare (ke fnal 183y orcoms of thess mattars |8 different from the smounits hat were initislly recorded, such dfferancas will
impact the incoma tax and defermed tax provisaons in the pencd in which such determination 15 made.

Tha Bank recognisss the net future tas banefit relatod bo deferred income tax assois b tha extent that it & probable thal the
deductibla femporary difisrences will reverse in tha fomseaable fulumn Assessing the ecoverabliity of deferred ncome Tax
assals requires the Bank by make significant estmates related b expactations of future taxabds incoma. Estimates of faturme
taxahle Income ara based on forecast cash flows from operations and the apolication of exisiing L laws in each jnsdection,
To the extant that fubdre cash fows and Exable mooeme differ sgnficantly rom esEmates, e ability of the Bank 1o realisa
the el defered (mx assets reconded at the end ol the reporting perdod could be impacisd.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policles
Impairmant of non financial assets
Tha Bank reviows it= non fnancial assats fo assess the Beefihood of impasrment on an annual basia. in delermining whethes

such assats are impaired, management make judgamans as to whather Swere are any conditions hat Indcals potential
irmpairmant of such assets.
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1.1 Revenus
Recognition of interst income and interest expenss

Urnder IFRS &, interast income |s recondsd wsing the efectye nlermst rale [EIR8) mathod for all financia! assets measuwred 8
amortised oosl Inberasi expenee is also caloulated using the EIR method for all fnancial Babiilies hald at amodtised cost,
The EIR i% fhi rale that exacty discounts estimated fulure cash recepts hraugh the waecded B of the financial essat or
limbifty or, when apgropriate, a shorsr peniad, bo the gross camying amaunt of the financis assat,

The EIR (and famfors, the amotisad cost of the finencis| aesst) B calouated by taking mn aceounl iranesclion costs and
ary dacaunt of premium on the acquisition of the financial asset, as wall as faes and costs thal are an Integral par of the
EIR. Tha Bank recognisas interest income using & rate of returm thal reprisents the best eslimate of a constant rase of retum
ovaf the expected |ife of the loan. Henca, the EIR celcuiation sisg takes ino sccount the @ect of polentially difenent inlerest
rates that may b changad at varkous stages of the financial as5el's expected life, and other characlernstics of the product life
cycla {including prapaymants, panalty intarast and charges),

Mel inberasl Noome comprses intenes] moome and inberest sxpense calculaied usng both the affective intarast meihod and
othar methods. Thasa ara disclosed separately on the fece of the income stalemenl for Bath infeses! ihcame and inleresl
expanse bo provide symemetnical and comparabls informistion,

Tha Bank salculaies interast moomae on financial assaets, othar than thesa considarad credit-impaired, by apehing the EIR o
fhe gross carrylng amount of B financial asset, 'When a financial assel becomes credit-impained and is therefora regarded
as “Stage ¥, The Benk calculales interest income by applying the EIR ko the nel amortised cost of the Snancial assel. ¥ ihe
financaad asset cures and is no longer credit-impaired, The Benk reverds to calcuiating Interest Income or a gross basis.

Fees and commissien on finencial services

The Bank earns fee and commissson income from a diverse ange of inancis! serices il provides to is customers. Fea.and
commission ineome s recognised al an amount Ehat reflecls the consideration fo which The Bank expects 1o be antitted in
exchenga for proviging the sarvicas,

Tha Bank also denves income from conalderation pasd by cuslomens to ranaler money and foraign axchangs Fansachons
Thase ravanues wvary by transaction basec wpon sand and receve locatisns, the principal emount sent, whather the money
transtar inwalves difforant send and recaive qurmancies, tha diffarence between the exchange rae sat by The Bank io he
cusiomer and the rale available in the wholesals fareign axnchangs maskel speed of sanice, ard channsl, 25 applicabla
Income fram foregn exchangs rarsaclions 8 (he edchange rale mangn between tha selling and the buying rtes of the
various curmancias raded in during the pericd (spol basa). Although basaline axchangs rales are determined by Bank of
Ugarda, The Bank adjusts markel rates in responsae o the marse! demand snd sapply of the respective forelgn curmoncies.
The Bank also offers several other services, ncluding payment services and olher bill paymant aervicas, for which income &=
impacted by sémilar fackors.

The perfarmance obligations, as wall as tha liming of thelr satsfsston, ane identified, and determined, al the incaption of
the comrsct The Bank's revenue conlracis do not typically include multiple perfformance obligakons, When The Bark
provides 8 sarvice bo il custormérs, consideralion s invoload and genarlty dua immadiately upon satisfaction of a sarvica
provided &t a podnt in tme or at the end of the contract period Tor @ service provided over Bme. The Bank has generally
cenclided that it ts tha principal v s revanue arrangamants bacauss it typically controds tha services bafoes iransfarring
Earm 1o e cusbomer
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1.4 Translation of foraign curmencies

Transacions in foreign currancies during the percd am comvered ints Ugande Shilings (lunctional currency), at rales ruling
at the Imnsacticn dafes. Assats and Fabilifos af the dete of this report which ere sapresssd in foreign cumencles arg
translated into Liganda Shillings at rabas rding at that dabe, The resultng diferences from conversion and transkation are
dendl with in tha peofil or loss in the pardad In which ey anse

A forelgn currency Tansaction is recorded, on initial moognition in Uganda Snillings, by spplying 1o the foraign currency
amoun tha spol exchangs rate bebweon the funclional currency and the foraign curransy af the date of the tansaction

Al the erd of the reporting penod:
«  foraign cumency moneatary dems are translated using e closing reta;
*  non-manetary fems thal ere mesaured in lerms of historcal cost in 8 forelgn cumancy are nol relranslated; and
¢ nonemonetary [bems thal are messured i fair vabue in 2 foreign curmency are ranslated using e exchangs ralas
at the date whan the fair value wag delermingd.

Exchangs differences arising on the seltflement of monatary itema or on fransiating monelary fems af rales different from
thvaee &l which they ware translated on intial recogrition during the panod or in previous financial statements ane recognisod
in prafit or loss in e period in which they ariss.

1.5 Proparty, eguipmant and right-of-use sssels

An Mem of prapery, equipment and right-of-use assets is recognised as an aesel when & & probable that lulune BeoRcmic
benefits aszociated with the iberm will fiow b the Bank, and e cost of the iem can be measured retably.

Proparty, squipmant and right-of-use apsats i Inflally racerded ot cosl and thereaflar staled at hMstorical cost less depreciation,
Hislorical cost comprises egpanditure initfally ncumad tn beng tha gasst to bs lecation and condtion ready for its intended use

Subsaguant costs ara Included in the esset’s camying amount o recodnised a5 a separaie asset, a5 appropriate, only whan i
i5 probabbe thal fulum ecancmic benefits associatad with the em wilfiow w0 the bank and the coal can be reliably measured,
The carrying amount of the repiaced part 5 derecognesed. All athar repairs and malnlerancs are changad o the profit or loss
during tha financial panad in which thay ara incurad

Subsaquent to indlial recognilion, propety and equipment and right-of-use-asset is measured at cost lese accumulated
depreclation and any accumulsled impairmen losses,

Depraciation of an asset commences whan tha aaaed i available for use &8 niendsd by management. Cepreciabon s charged
o writa off tha assafs carmying amount over [ts astimated useful life & s estimated residual vatus, using a methad that best
rodecls Fw patlern 0 which e assafs economic banefits are consumad by the bank Lesssd msssts ace deprecialed inoa
comgistent manner over the shorler of their eapecled wuseful Ives and the leass term. Dapreciation is not chargad 1o an assat i
s estimated rasideal value exceads or I8 equal o B8 ceryng amount. Depraciabon of an asset ceases at the aadiar of the
data that the asse! 5 cdassified as held for sals or derecogrised.

Depraciation i calmilatad on a sraight line hass to write down the cost of sach assed o = residual value over iis esSmated
useful life, using the lollowing anmual rates

Mature of agsels Depreciation method Useful life
IT mguipmanl Siraight line 3 years
Office squipmant Siraight line & years
Elecirical fittemgs Siraighl line & yaars
Furniiure and Ntings Slraight line & yoars
Motor wehiclas Siranght line 4 yemms
Right -of-use Easets Siraight line 2.18 yoars

The residual value, useful life and depreciation meathod of each sssel are reviewad at the end of each reporing vear. If the
expaclaions difer from prévious estmates. the change s accounted for prospactivaly as a changa in accounding estimate,

Edch part af an [am of propesty, egquipment and righl-of-use asssls with a cost that is sgnificant in relaon to tha totol coat of
ta iem |s depreciated separately.

The deprecialion charge for aach year is recognised in profif or loss urkess il s included in the camying amount of anolfar
assel
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1.5 Property, equipment and right-of-use assets [continued)

An nem of propedy, equipment and right-of-use assets 5 darecognised upon dispasal or whan no fubure economic benefits an
axpacied rom s conlinesd use or dsposal, Any gain or loss ansing from the derecognition of an ltem of proparty, egquipmert
and right-ol-use assels, deformined as the diffarance betwaan tha nat disposal procesds, i any, and the camydng amaunt of tha
fem, s nciuded In pralit or kess when the lem is derscognisad,

1.6 Employee benafits
Short-term employee benefits

The cosl of shirt-tarm employes banelits, (hose papabla within 12 months alier tha sardics is mnderad. such as paid wacation
legve and sick leave, bonuses, and nor-monetary benefits such as medcal care), ame recognised in the perdod in which tha
sanvice is randerad and ane nod discouniad.

The exipected cosl of compensaled absences i recopnised as on expenss a3 the employees mnder aendoss that increass
thelr enlifamant or, o the cate of nor-accumuilaling absencas, when the absence oocurs

The edpected cost of profil sharing and bonus paymanis is recognised as an axpanse when there is 8 legal or constnuctive
nblgation o make such paymants 23 & resull of past perfosmance

Dwfined contribution plans

The Bank and ol its" empéoyees conbribuba to the National Social Security Fund, which is a defined contribution schama. &
defined conirbulion plan & a pansion pan urde which the Bank pays a fixed coniribulion 1o a segarabe andily. Tha Bank has
no legal oF construciive obEgation 1o pay further contribulions |7 ihe Tund doas nol hold suflicianl assels 1o pay all employees
the benefits relating 1o employes service in the currenl and pror periods. The assets of the scheme are held in 8 separals
trustes administerad fund which s funded by coniribetions from both the Bank and employess

The Bank's conldbuliors o the defined contnbulion schama am changed 1o the siaderment of profil or koss and olhar
camprehanaive income in the year o which they fail dus

1.7 Leases

A the inception of the contracl, the Bank assesses whather 8 coniract is, 8 lasse. Contract is, or coniains, a lease if f=a
conirac conveys the I'inh'l- 1o conlrgl he use of an wentified assels loc & padod of bime in exchange for considera®on To
asgass whathar contraci covans the fight to control the usa of an ldentified assets. b Bank assagses whethar,

*  a contract invpdves the use of an kdentifad ageats — this may ba specifisd expéicitly or Implichey, and should ba
physically distinct or rapresant substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset f the supplier haz a
subsiantive subatituticn rght. then the assat is nof Identified,

. e Bank has the right 1o oblain substanially all of Ihe econoeme: benalis from use of the assed Tioughoul the perod
of use; and

= i Bank has e righl 1o direct (e use of the assel The Bank has this righl when § has the decsion-miaking fghls
ihat are most relevant o changing how and for what purpose the assal i3 used. in rare cases whena the decision about how
and far what purposa the assat is used Is predetarmined. tha Bank has tha night io direct the use of tha Bssat if edther;
> this Bank has the right fo operate the asset; or
= thie Bant dasagned tha assel in a8 way ihat predaterminas how and for what purposa # will b wsed

Al incesplion of on rekssessment of a conlract thal containg @ lease componend, the Bank aliocates ihe consideration in the
contréct to each lease component on the basis of thelr relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leeses of jend and
buBdings in which it & & lesses, he Bank has elecled not to separats non-Jesse components and account for the lease and
non-ease componants as a singhs legse componeanl,

&z 5 lassae

Thea Bank recogneges a righd-of-use assel and 3 lease labiihes al the bBage commencemenl date. The nghl-ol-use asset &
iriGaily measured af cosl which comprises Me inillal amount of e leass liabilly adjusied for any lease payments mads at o
bafara the commancamant dals, plus any indial direc! costs incurmad and an satimata of costs %o damantle and mmove tha
undarying sesal or ta resiors the underdying asaet or the site on which it 18 Incated, lees any ksase incentivas received.
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1.7 Leases (continued)

The fght-of-use asset ls subsanquently depraciated usng the sraight-ine method from he commencemant date to e aarier
af the and of e useful lite of the Aght-ol-use asssd or the end of the lease larm. The astimated wseful ives of nght-ct-usa
aeaais ara datermined on tha gama hasis as thoss of proparty and equipment. In addition, tha nght-af-iise aesat is pariadically
raducad by impaimment losses, if any. adiested for cerain mmeasuramen's of the keaze lability

The leaga ebilty is ntially measured al the presenl valus of the lzase payment that ara not pald &t the commencemeant date,
discountad using e nterast rate mgdicl in the lease or, If thal rale cannot be readily dabermined, the Bank's incrementsl
bomowing rate. Ganerally, the Bank uees (B incromaental borrowing rate @s the discoun rake.

Lease payments incheded in he measwrement of the lease lbility oompriss (he foSowing
* fwed paymants, including in-substanca fived peymants;

= vafiable l=ass payments fal depend on an index or & rale, intally measored using the index or rele as et the
commancameant dabe,

=  pmounds axpacted io be payable under a resicugl valua guarentes; and

o Ihe sxercee price undar @ purchase oplion thal the Bank is reasonably cenam 10 eercse, lease payrmants inan
oparabonal remewal perod il the Bank & rezssonebly cefain bo ederciss an exiension opbon, and panaflies lor sardy
tarmination of 8 lease unless the Bank |s reascnably cefain nof to tlerminale eary,

The laase Eabiity is measured af amaortised cost using the affectve intarest mathod. |t is remaaaurad when thare is 8 changa n
fulure lmasa paymanls arsing from changa in an indax or rae, i there B a change in tha Bank's estimala of the amount

expesiad to be payable under a residual value gusrantes, or if the Bank changes #% assessment of whather § will exsrcise
purchase extension or iermination option,

Whan the Imase Babidty is remassured in-this way, a comssponding adjustment s made 1o the camying amount of S right-of-
usa asset or is racorded in profit or loss if tha camying emount of the nghl-ofass asset has been raduced to zenn

Shori-term lesses and leases of low-value assets

Thie Bank has elected not b6 recognise dghl-of-ese assats and lease labilses for short-tarm leases that have a lease temmn of
12 mondha or leas and inases of loa-vaiue assets. The Bank recognises tha lsase payments assgciated with these lsases as
an axpEnses an 2 sbaighi-line hasis ovar the laase arm,

18 Tax

Tha o expensa for the parled comprises current and dafermad Incoms tas. Tax ks recognised In proft or loss, except 1o he
axtant thal it relates to tems mepgnised In other comprabenshe income or diraclly In eguity. in iz case, e iax iz alss
racognised in athar comprahensive incoma or diresctly in equity reapectvaly.

Tha cwmant incomse tax charge s calculaied on the besis of lax lbws enacied or subsmniively enacied af the epoding dade
The dirgctors parodically emluate postions taken in tax ratums with raspect o shustions In which apglicable lax regulaton &=

subjed o interpredation, They estabiish prosisions whero appropriate on the basis of amounts expocted o be padd o the tax
nutharilas.

Deferred income tax |5 recognised, using the Bability methad on temparary differences arsng batween (he tax bases of assets
and kabilites and thelr carmying amaunts in the finencial statements, However, deferved Lax labililies are not recognised if they
asisa from e indlal recogniton of goodwill; dafamed ncoeme tax 18 ROt Bocounted for I It Bnses from intdal recogniton of &n
azsel or llabdity in @ ransaciien other than & besiness combination hat @ the 3me of the transagiion afects nailher aceounting
rar fawahds profit o loss. Deferrad income tax is determined using (e ratas (and lowe ) that heve basn enacted ar 1i||,|l:1:|a|'|:i||'|11'.-E|II:,.I
enaced by the repoding dale and am expecied bo apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
incoamee tax Eabliity |s seltied

Current tax asseis and liabitites

Current tax for curmeat and pror pasiods is, io the axtant onpasd, recognised as a liahility, H the amownd already paid in reepect
ol current gnd pl'iﬂ' pubduam&m i amoant dus Tor thoss p-'r:nd.*.. the sacess is I'nwgnil‘d 05 an el
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1.8 Tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liablitiss

A, daferred tax liabddity = raccgnisad for all axeble lemperary diffarences. sucept to the extant thet the deferred tax Hability
arzes from Bhe indis Fecoghifion of an assat of lisbiby 0 8 transacion which al the tme of the ansacsan, a¥ects naithar
scoounting profit nor taxable profil {Tax loss)

A dafarred tax asset is racognised for all daductible lamporany diferances ta the axbent that it is probable that taxable profit wil
be available againat which the deductble termporany diference can be ulilised. & deferred @x assel is not recognised: whian £
arises from e inifial recognition of en sesat or labliity in a transaction at tha timae of the transaction, afects nelthee sccaurting
profil nos tacakla profl (e loss)

A delerred tax aszel s recognised for the camy forward of ursed tax oeses and unused STC credits 1o the extent that it is
profable that futwng taxakde profilwill s available against which the unusesd Bx oEses and unusaed 5T credits can be ubilsed

1.9 Financial instrumanis
Initial measuremant of financial instrumants

The classification of inancial instuments at inital mcognition depands on e contraciual lerms and he business model
for managing the instrumants. Financial instrumants ara inially measured at thedr far value axcapt in the cass of finenaial
gezels and financlal lishilites recormad al FUPL, ransackion costs gre pdded to, or subfracted frem, this amosnl Trade
racaivables are measurad al the transachon price, When the fair valwe of fnancial instruments at inital recognition difers
from the transaclion price.

Wihen the ransaction price of the instrument differs from the  feir vales 8% erginatisa arnd the far value = based on 3
walualion technique wsirg only irputs obserdable in market ransactons, the Bank recognrises the difference batwesn the
transaclion price and fair value In nat trading income. In those cagas whare feir value |8 bazed on madels for which soma
of the Inputs are nol absarvable, the diferance betwoen the transaction price and the lair value = dafered and is only
racognised in prafit or loss when the  Inputs became observable, or when the instrument i derecognisad.

Measurement categories of financial aseets and liabilifies

The Bark dassifies all ils Enancial assets based on the busiress modsl for managing the asseis and lhe assel's contractual
fermns, measured Bt ither:

= Armortised cost
- Fair value through cther comprehansive incoma (FYOCH)
- Fair value through praff or oss (FVTPL)

The Bank classiflea and maasures iis Irating portlolio at FYPL and alss may designate financal Insmumanta af FYPL. I 55
daing aliminales or significantly reduces maasuremani or moognition inconsisiencies.

Financial liabiities, oihar than kan commilments and ol guaraniens, ar measissd at amodisad cost or st FUPL
whan thay &re held for tsading and derivative insfrumants or the fair value designation s spplied.

Detarmination of fair value

In ardar to show how fair values hava bean darvad, Bnanclal Rstruments are classified bazed on a hisrarchy of valuation
fachrgues, a8 summarised below,

Laval 1 fnancial instrumants - Those whare the IRpuls ussed @ the valuabion are unadjusted quoted prices from active
maskeds for idantical assels or liabiites that the Sank has acoess 1o @ the measurament date, The Bank considers markats
a5 Active only ¥ there are enough frading activilies wilh regands to the salurme and liquidity of the identical assets or llabiities
and whan thara are binding and exarcksablea price guotes svailable an the repociing date.

Level 2 financial insirumants - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derved from
darecly oF indirectly observable markal data available over the entirg peniod of the instrument's life. Buch mputs include
quabed prices lor aimilar asseals or liabildies in active marksts, quoted prices for identical Instruments in Insctive markets and
ohsanable inputs athar than guoted prices such as intarest rates and yiekd curves, irrplied volatiliies, and crodil sproads. in
ndditon, adustments may ba required for the condition or location of the assed o lhe axtant 1o wivich £ relsles b items thal
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1.8 Financial instrumaents |(continued)
are comparabta o the valeed instumant. However, | such Bdjusimenis are based on unobservable inputs which an
significant ta the entire maasuremenl, the Bans will classiy the Instrumsants as Level 3.

Level 3 francial instruments - These that inclde one or mone uncbsendable ingut that = significant o e measwamant as
wihale,

Financial asseis and llabilities

Financial azseis af amortizad cost

Tha Bank measures dus from banks, kans and advances to customers and other financial investmaents al amortised cost
anly if both of the lollowing conditions ars mat;

= The financial asset & held within a business modal wih The objective to hodd financial assets In crder 1o callect conraciu
cash fows

=The conlraciual lenms of the finantia assel give risa an specifisd dates to cash flows that ara soely paymants af peineipal
and Interast (SPPl) an the principal amoun! oulstanding

The dafals of thase conditions are ouflined bealow;

Busingas model asscasment

The Bank determines |ts buginess model &t the bevel that bes) reflects how it manages groups of fnancial assels o achieve
its business obijacie:;

= Tha risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financa! aasets held within that busess modal) and
the way those risks. am managed

« Hivwy managess of tha busness are compensabed {for exampls, whathar the compansation is based an the fakr value of tha
BS3els ranaged or on e coniraciual cash Nows colleched)

Thie papecind fraquancy, wvalue end timeng of sales are also impartant aspects of the Bank's assessmant. The business
mode! assesament |3 based on reasorably expecled scenarios withoul l1aking “worsd case’ of “siress cass” scenaros Inlo
account. If cash flows after infial recognition are reafised in @ way that i diffarent from the Bank's odginal expeciations,
the Bank does nol change the classification of the  remaining financial assets hald in that business model, bt
incorporates such information when assessing newly originaled or newly purchasad financial assals going forward.

Tha SPPI tast

fs a second step of its classification process, the Benk assasses the conlractual terme of the financal ssesd 1o dentily
whelhar they meal he SPP tesl Principal’ for Bve purpose of this test is defined as the far value of tha financeal essat &l
Initial recognition and may changs over the fife of the financial assel (for examgpla, if there are repaymants of principal or
amartizetion of the premiumidiscount),

Tha most sgnificant slementa of intarest wilkin a landng arangament are bypicaly the consideration for the tme value of
manay and credit risk. To maks fhe SPPI assssamenl, the Bant sppliss judgemant and considers ralavan! factors such as
tha cwmmancy in which fhe financal asset 5 denominated, and the perisd for which the interes! rale = 88t In conbas),
contrachuigl tarms tha inlroduce a mare han da minimis expisure [0 dsks of volablity  the contractual cash fiows Mat am
unrelated (o & basic lending amangemeant do not give rige B conaciual cash Mows (ha! s soleky pq:,rm of principal
and intaresl on e amount outslanding. Ir such casss, the finanrcial asse! s requined o b2 measured af FYPL

Financial assets and liabilities hald at FVTPL

Tha Bank ciassifies financial sssats or financial liabiities as held for trading when ey have been purchased or ssued
primarily for shor-tarm profit-making hrough trading activities or lofm part of a portfolio of financial insbrumanis fal are
managed kgathar, far which lheme 8 svidenca of & recent patiern of shor-term profit taking. Held-for-ireding assets and
lablliies are recondad and measurad in the statemant of financial pasition at fair valus. Changas in fair value are eoogrisod
kn pther incoms. Interest and dividend Income or expense & ecorded in athar incoime assording b e berms of B contrad,
o when the right o payment has been astebiEshed.

Debt instrurments at FYOC)
The Bank classilles cebl instrumants at FWOC whan beth of he folissing condifions anoe mel:

= Tha instrumant s held within a business modal, tha objective of which iz achiaved by both collacting eontractual cash fows
and saelling financiat asgals
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1.9 Financial instrumants (continued)

= The contraciusl berms of the Grancial assst mee| the 3PP (=g

(zains and losses on disposal of imestments whose changas in [alr value wens nitially meeognisad in the statarmant of profit
or lass arg determinad by referance o thair carmying emount &nd are taten intg sccount in determining prafit bofora tax On
disposal of invvestments whode changes in fair value were indftialy recognésed in eguity, the panallosses ane recogrised in
tha resande, wiera 1he falr valuss ware inltially recognised. Any gain { losses racongisaed @ other compranensaive ineoma wil
be recyded upan derecognition of the asset,

Purchases and ssles of nancial assets are recognised on the trade date (e the date on which the Bark commils o
purchase of sell the assel

Equity instrumants at FYOCI

Lipon inifial recogniion. the Bank occasionaly slects o clasaily irevoeably some af s equily investments as equity
Instruments at FYOC! when they mest the definiion of definitan of Equity under 1AS 32 Financés! Instruments; Presantation
and are nol hald for radng. Such dlaasification is determined on an nstrumeni-by- instrument basis.

Gaing and losses on thase equily irslumants are never recycbed to profil, Dividends are mecognissd in profid or loss &5
ofnar oparating incomea when the nght of the payment hae bean sstablished, excepl when the Bank banefits from such
procesds a5 A fecovery of part of the cosl of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded m OCL Eguity
inatruments a1 FWOCH ane rod sublact 1o an impaimment assessment

Financial guarantees, letters of oredit and undravwn loan commitments

The Banrk ssues Nnanclal guarantees, letfers of cradit and loan comméiments. Financisl guaraniees am infialy recognised
in the financisd stataments (within Provisions) at fair value, being e gremivm received, Subsaguent b initisd recognition, tha
Bank's liability under sach guarardes & measured ol e heghier of the amounl nitially ecognised |ess cumulative
amartisation recogniaed in the income statement, and an ECL allowance, The prémium receined is recognised in (he Income
statemnant n Mal faas and commizsion incama on a slraighl-line basls aver the life of the guarantes.

Undrawn loan commitments and lettars of credils am commiimants under which, ower e duration of the commitmen, the

Bank is required to provide a lcan with pre-spacified tarms to the customer. Like Fnancial guarantes contracls, these
conitracts are in the scope of the ECL requirements

Tha nominal contractual value of finencial guarsntess, latters of credd end undrewn losn cormmilmaents, whare he loen
agresd o ke provdded s on markel terms. are nat recosded on in tha siatement of financial position. The nomina! valuas of
theisa inatruments together with the correspanding EGL are disclosed

Reclassification of financial assets and liabllites

Tha Bank doas nol reclassify ds financial assets subsequent to theds niial recogpition, span from the excapticonal
croumstances in whech tha Bark acguires, disposes of or tarminates a busingss line. Financial labdiies are never
resclasastied

Deracognition of financia assets and labilities

Derecognition due (o substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Bank deracognises a financial asset, such as 8 loan to 8 customer, when the  lerms and conditions have been
remagolated o tha exien thal, substantially, | bacomas 8 naw loan, wih the diferenca recognised as a8 derscagniton gain
or boss, b the exlent that an impairment loss has nob alresdy bean recorded, The newly mocgnised loans ame classified as
Stage 1 for ECL measuvromant purposaes, unless e now loan is deemed o be purchased or origenated cradi impaired
(POCY)

When assessing whather to derecognise & loan to & customer, amangs! others, the Bank considers he lollowing facions

= Chamngs in curmency af the Dan

= Introduction of an equity Taatune
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1.9 Financial Instruments (continued)
= Chars n counlarparty
= |f the modification iz such thal fe nsirumant would no langer mest the SPPI criterion

I i modification doas nod resull in cash flows that e subslantially diflsrenl. a5 sef out below, the modification does not
fesull in demcognilion, Based on the changs in cash flows dscounted at the origingl EIR, e Bank records a8 modificatian
gain or loss. to tha extant that an impalrmant less has nol afready been recorded, For financial abdiies, the Bank conslders
a modification substantial based on qualilative factors and f it rests in & dfferance betwesn the adjusted discountad
prasent vslug and the originad camying amount of the financial lishdity of, or grealer (ke len percenl. For financlal agsets
this stzezzment & hased on quaitative factors

Durecognition other than for substantial modifcatien

Financial assets

& fnandal assel {or, whare applicable, 3 pard of a financial asset of part of a group of similar fnancial assais) s
dengcogniséd when the rights o receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Bank eiso darecagnizes e
financial assed if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for denecognition

Tha Bank has traraferred the fnancial asset i, and anly i, either
= The Bank ks transfemed its confrachual rights o mceive cash fows from the financial assat; ar

. Il retains tha rkghts 1o @ cash flows, bul has assumed an obligalion o pay he recehed cash fows in Ul withoul
material delay to a thid pardy under a 'pess—theough’ arangemand

Pass<hrough arrangamants ara fransachons whereby the Bank retains the contractus righis 1o recalve the cash fiows of a
financil assel (he ‘ofiginal assel’), bul assumes a confrachial abligabion Yo pay those cash flows io ona or more enlilies
(\Ehe 'evenial recipeents’], when ali of the Tollewing three conddlions are muel;

- The Bank has mo abligation fo pay amounts 1o the evenlual reciplents unless Il has collacted aquivalenl amounts
from tha origingl asset, sechading short-tarm wdvences w8ih the right to full recoveny of the ameount lent plus sccuad
inlerast Al markal ratas

. The Bank cannot s2ll or pledge the ofginal asset other than as Secuniy 10 ihe eveniesl recipients
- The Bank must remit any cash fiows it collects on bahall of the eveniual recipiants without metenal detay,
- In addition; the Bank 5 not enftled 1o minvest such cash fiows, except for investmants in cash or cash equivalents,

Inciuding nferasi eamad, during the parod babwean the collection dete and the data of raquired remitiance to tha
avantual moplanis.

A ransfer ocody quatifies for derecogrition i elther

. Tie Bank has ransfered subsianiially all the rfeks and rewands of ihe assel; or

= The Bamk has nelther ransferred nor relained subsiantially all the fsks and rewards of tha assael. but has
trensfarred conirel of the assst

Tha Bank considers conlrod i be transfamed if and only if, the transferas has the practical ability to sall the assel in s
erliroly o &n unselated fird party and can exercige thal abilily uniaberally and wilhoul impoging additonal restictions on tha
transfer,

Whien tha Banrk has neithar ransferrad nor mtained substantiady alf the risks and rewards and haa relained coatrl of tha
Bszal the assel conbmues o be recognized only bo the exent of the Bank's continuing involwvemant, in which case, tha
Bank also racognisas an associated liability. The fransfarred asset and the assoctabad Nability are measured on a basis thal
rafects the rights and obligations that the Bank has relained,

Continuing Invalvemant ihal takas the farm of 8 guarantes over hs fransferred assel &5 maasured at the lowar of e onginal
camying amount of the essel and the maximem amoun of consideration the Bark could bo mquired 19 pay.
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1.0 Finansisd instrumenis |cantinuad)

If cardinuing involrement takes the form of @ wiitten or purchased aption (or o) an the tansfered assat, the contauing
Involyament fs measurad at the value the Bank waould be requiced to pay upon repurchasa. In the casa of a writtan put option
on-an assel that s measured at fair wafue, the extent of the enlily's continuing imvalvement is limited to the bowes of the fair
value of the transferred assel and the option exercise price

Financial liabliitkes

& financeal lighility = derecogniaed when the chiigation under the Lability ke discharged, cancebad of superas, Whats  an
axisling financal Eability is replaced by another from ftha same lender on substantially different tesma, or tha f2ams of an
exisling [Ebillty are subsianlially modified, such an exchange or modificstion is irmated gs 8 derecognition of e origenal
lability and the recogniion of & new liehility, The diferance between (he carrying walue of the original Brancal kebility and
tha consideration padd Is recognisad in profit or loss,

Impairment of financial assets
Owarviow of the ECL principles

The Bank records an aliowances for expected credil loss for all loans and cther debi inancial assets not beld at PYPL,
togeiter with loan commilments and Nrancia guarantes conlracts, in thee seclion all referred 1o as MNirancal Redruments’,
Equity Instrimants are not subfact o impairment under FRS 9,

The ECL alowance is based on the credit losses expeciad o ansea over Bhe [ife of the assel [ihe lilelime expected credit
losses of LTECL), unless there has been no significan) ncheass in credi nsk snce  odginaton, in which case, (ke
allowancs is bazed on Ehe 12 monihs' sxpectad credit losses (12mECL). Tha 12MECL & the pordson af LTECLs bl
repregant (he ECL that resull from defaclt evenls on a fnancal irstument thal sre possible within he 12 months aftes (he
repaorting date. Bath LTECL and 12mECL ere calculated on ekher an individual basls or 8 collective basls, depending on the
niature of the undarlying partfolio of fnancial insirements.

The Bank has esiablished a policy io perdorm an assessment, at the end of gach reponing pariod, of whether a financial
instrumant's crodid risk has increased signifiaantly simce initial recognifion, by considedng the changa in tha rsk of defaull
ocouTing ovar the memaining life of e financial instrumiant.

Ta ensurs competenass and accuacy, e Bank obiains the data used from third perly sources (economic data and
foracast information by the govemmental and infematonal monetany authorties, ate.) and uses the services of an exienal

consultant that verifies the accuracy of inpats to the Bank's ECL models Including defermining the waights attributable fo the
miltinie scenancs. The kay nput in the ECL madal includae

= Cuartarly bean kstlng for previous flve years,

- Wiite-off datails and recovanes from the previoes 5 years; and

- Year-end balances for exposed assels.

Based on ihe above process, tha Bank groups s koans into Slags 1. Stage 2, Siege 3 end POC, as dascribad below

+ Slage 1. When losns ane first recognised, The Bank recognises an allowance based on 12mECL.

Stage 1 loans alsa mchade taclittes whera ihe credit sak has Improved, and the lcan has been rectasaified from Stagae 2,

= Btage 2 When a loan has shown a significand increase in credit sk since originaticn, the Bank recards &n allowanss
for the LTECL. Stage 2 lsans alss include facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has besn reclassified
froim Stage 3. insfances foe s1age 2 mey include B customean with vanous laciidies and defaulis on gne of them, restructiured
debl and’ secor affectsd by nalural hazands,

« Stage X Loans considerad credit impaired, The Bank records an allowance for the LTECL Insiances may include

custamar bairg dedared barkrupt by an independant govemment authority, pronounced a defaulier by another inancal
instibution and recebving a directive From the regulator to fuly imgair She paty's fecarvable
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1.9 Financia! instruments [continued)

= POCI: Purchased or ariginated crediy imparad (POCH) sssats are financial assets thal s credit imgaired on inilial
retognition. POCI asse's are recordad at fair value &l original recogrition and nenest incoma s subsaquantly recognised

based on @ cridil adjiusted EIR, The ECL allowanca is only recognised or rebeasad to the axtant that there &= a subsaguent
change In the sxpecied credit losses,

For inarncis aesels fof which e Bank has no mesonable expecietions of recovering efther the entire outstanding amoaunt,
or @ proportion thoreof, the gross carmying amound of the feansal ssasl & redoced This is considered a (parbal)
derecognition of the financial azsat

The calculation of ECL

The Bank calculabes ECL based on four probebiity-wmghied soenarios io measurs the axpectad cash shonfalls, discounted
al an approximalion lo the EIR. A cash shartfall is the diforonca betwean the cash flows that are dus o an eadity in
accordance with e contract and the cash flows thal the entity expects o receiva

The mechanics of the ECL calkculations are oullined below and the key efamisnis are as follows:
= Probasiity of Default (PD)

Tha Prababiily of Default is an estimata of the Ikelihood of defaull over & given tima horizon. A dafault rmay anly happen al
a ceriain tme aver the assessed pariod, If the faciity has not baan pavously derecognised and is slill in the portfolic. Tha
Bank conskders a financial instrument defaubiad for ECL calculations in all cases whean fhe bomower Becomes 90 days past
due on iI5 contrackeal payments. The Bank congiders reagury and inferbank batances defauiied ad lakes immeadiga acion
whan the reguired infreday payrmanta are nol sefted by he closs of buginess as aulined In the ndividual agreements. PD
astimation is dered by buckating producteifeciiies for sagmertation based on homogensous characlesstics such as
indusbry or Facility type, the historcal loes rate and the weighted averags koess rate and the Credit Carversion Factar (CCF).
The Bartk usas tha CCF which is based on Bank of Uganda guidelines for risk welghtage of assets. The CCF for fund-based
assels and undrawn overdrall limits is 100% and 50% respechively. For non-fund-based products such as ietter of credi,
guaraniees and derivalives, their CCF s 200, 100% and 5% respectively,

+ Ewposurs at Default (EAD):

The Expozure al Detaul is an estimale of the exposure 8l & fuluee cefaull date, laking inlo eccount expectad changes in
the exposura aftar fe reporiing date, including  repaymenis of principal and iMeres), whelher scheduled by contract or
atherstss, expacted drawdowns an commitied facilities. and accrusd infarast from missed payments. The Bank determines
EADs by modeSing the range of possitia sxposure cuicomes &1 varous points in Bme, camespanding e mulliple sosnarias
The IFRS 9 POs are {hen assigned to each sconomic scenana based on the outcome of Bank's models

= Loss Glven Default

Tha Loz Giver: Dafaull it an aztimabe af tha oz aricing in tha cato wharo a default coows at a given tima. M is based on
the offarence betasan the contractual cash fows dus and thase thal the lender would expect to recehe, including fram the
realization of any collateral or cradit enhancements thet are integral fo the loan and not requised o be recognised
sepanalely. Il is wually expressed g5 @ perceniags of the EAD. Under IFRS 9. LGD mtes are esfmated for the Siags 1,
Stage 2, Siage 3 and FOC! IFRS @ sagment of each assat class, The npuls for (hade LGD rates are estimated and, where
possdble, calibrated through back lesling agalrst recanl recoveries. Thess are repsaled for each sconomic scenario as
Apprapriata

Write-off

The Bank writes aff loans and advancas nat of &ny related alosances ol impairment igsses, when e Bank's Credi|
Cormemittan datarminee thal tha loans and advances are uncollsclible and sacuribes uprealisabls. This detarmination is
ragched aftar corsidering information such Bs the cccurrenca of significant changes in the bomrowes or issear's inansial
posifian such fhai the bormower o issuar can no longar pay the chigaion, or that proceads from =zals of collateral will nat be
suflicient lo pay back tha entlire exposure and after axhausting all cther means including litigation, Far smaber bafanca
stangandiged ians, change off decagions ane ganarally based on a product spacific past due status.
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1.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's non-financlal assats, other fhan deferad B assets and inventony ane reviewsd af each
raparting dale lo detarminag whather thare s any indication of impalment. [ any such indicatlon sxists, then the assel's
racowerable amount is astimated,

Tha recavarable amount of an asset or cash-genaraling unit is thi greater of i#s value in uss and s fair value less costs to
sall. In assessing value N use, the estimated fulure cash Nows are discounied o their present value wsing a pre=ta discount
rato that refects current markel assesaments of he Ere valus of mansy and the reks specfic o e asset, For the purposs
of impairmant tasling. Aesats that cannot bs teated indhdduslly are greuped tagethar inta the srallest greup of assets that

generstes cash mflows from conlinuing use thal are larpely indepandant of the cash Inflows of other aesets or groups af
aagals (the ‘cash-genearaling und, or CGUT),

The Bank's conporate assets do nof genere separate cash Infiows. If ibave |5 an indication that a corporate asset may be
impained, ihan the recowsrable amount = determined far the CGU to which the conporste asset balongs,

An mpairmant [oss is recopnized if the camying amount of &1 asset of M CGL exceeds ils eslimaled moovamble amouni
Impairment losses are recognized i peofit or loss. Impairment losses recognized In respect of CGUs are slloceted first 1o
retuce the carmying amount of any goeadwill allocasad to the units, and Men o reducae the camying amounts of the other
mazets i the unit (group of units) on o pro mta Gasis,

Impairment losses recognizad in prior penods are 8ssessed 8 each reporling date for any indications Bial the loss has
dacraased or no longer exists. An imparment loss |s reversad if shera has been a change in tha estimates used o
dulerming the mcswarable amounl An impairment loss is reversed only o the extent that the asset's camying amount does

nol axcesd the carmying amount thal would have been delermined . net of degreciation or amarisation, If no impalrment boss
had been recognized.

1.11 Dividend

Diwvidands on ordinary shares afe changed (o equity 0 [he ypear B which thay are declared. Dividends declared afler tha
slatemant of financial posifon dabe are disclosed in the robes. This is rensfered from etained sarmings 1o @ separale item
"propesed dividand® undar aguity

1.12 Contingent liabilities

Latiars of credil, acceplancas, guaraniees and performance bonds sre accounied for as ofT alance shesl ransacbons amd
dizclosnd a3 contingent Sabilltes, Estimates of the culcoma and of the financial effect of conlingent Kabilities is made by the
managamant hasad on the formation available up b the dafe the fmancial stalements are approved for iSsus By the
demaciors. Any expacted Ioss is changed to profit or less

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Froviskens are recognised whan:
#  ihe Bank has a prasant obligaton 88 & reault of a past avant,

L] il is probable that an outfow of resources ambodying economic tenefits will be required o selte $ha obligabicn;
end

*  arelable estimaie can be made of the obligation.
Contingant asseis and confingani lishilites are not recognised
1.14 Equity

An aguity Instrumant is any contract that evidancas a residuad inlerest in the assets of an entity aftter dedusting all of s
limbiltas, Ordinary shares ara racogniased at par valus and clasaified as ‘sham caphal’ in sgquity,
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Motes to the Financial Statements

2. Mew Standards and Interpretations
2.1 Standards and Interpretations effactive and adopted in the current year

In b currand year, the Bank has adoplad the folowing standards and intenpratations that are effective for tha current financaal
woar and fhaf are relevant o ik opemalkons

Proceads before Inlended Use (Amendments to &S 16}

Prohibdis an antity from deductng from the cost of proparty, plant and equigement amownis recaived rom selling Beme produced

whila the enlity i prepasing the assat for its inmnoed usa. Insiead. an entity will recognisa such =ales procaeds and retaded
cost in profit or loes.

The effeslive Gate of he amendment |3 for years beginnang on o after January 1, 2022

The Bank has adoplad ®a amendmant for the fiest Bme in the 2022 Brancial slatemants,

The mpact of (he amandmend is nol matenal

Onarous Contracts — Gost of Fulfiling a Contract (Amendments (o IAS 3T)

The amandmant specifiss which costs an entity inclisdes when essessing wheiher B contract will ba loss-making..
The afective dale of the amendment IS fof years beginning on of alter January 1, 2022,

Tha Bark has adopted the amendmani for the fest ima (0 the 2022 firancial stabedments.

The mpacl of the amendmenl & nat matenal,

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 16)

IFRE 8@ Financial instrumanis

The impravameant clarifies ihe fees an endily should include when assessing whether the leems of a new or modified financial
lighility are substantally different from e terms of e aniginal fnancial kabilsy,

Lease Incentives

Removes potential for confusion raganding leasa ncentives,

The effective date of the amendment is for years begirning on o aflar January 1, 2022
Tha Bank has adopied tha amandmant for the first ima i the 20232 firancial slatemanis.
Tha impact of the amendmant 18 nod matedal

2.1 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The Bank hes chosen not lo sarty adodl ctandards and intepretations, which hava boen published and anmn m.;r-dmnq.l for tha
Bank's eccounting panods begmning an or aler Januany 1, 2023 or laber perods:

Standard! Intarpretation: Effective date: Expected Impact:
Years beginning on or
after
= Daferrod Tax Ralaled io Assals and Liablliias ariseng from  January 1, 2023 Unlikady thare will ba a
a Snghe Transaction (fmendmants to A5 17) maferial Impact
= Definiton of sccounting estimales (Amendments 1o IAS 8} January 1, 2023 Unlikaty thare will ba a
rnaterial mpac
- Dischosure of accounting podicies (Amendmeanis o IAS 1 January 1, 2023 Unlikesy there will ba &
and practca statamant 2} rmalesisl impact
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3. Financial risk management
Financlal risk managameni

Tha Bank's activities axpesa it fo a vanety of financial risks: market sk (including currency rsk, far valus interast rate risk,
cash Bow Interest rate fisk and price risk), credil rsk- and liquiddly risk. Those activiies Involve the analysis, evalusfion,
acceplance and managemeant of some dagres of risk or combinafion of risks. Taking risk is core to the Bank's business,
and the financial nskes are an inevitable eonsequéence of beng In busingss, Tha Bank's aim s therefore to schieve an
approgriste balence between rigk and refurn &nd categoriss potential advarss effects on ils inancisl performance.

Financial risk managamant = carrisd aut by the Treesury and Cradit deparimant under poicies soproved by Be Board of
Daractors, Tressury identifies, ovaluates and hedges Fnancial risks in close co-operation with the oparaling units. The
Board provides writlen principles for overall risk management, as wall as writtan policies covering specic areas such as
foreign machange risk, interast rata risk, cradn sk, use of derivative and non-defvative Mnancial instruments.

|aj Capital managamaent
Internally imposed capital requirsmens

The Bank's objeclives when managing capital, which is & broacer concegt than the equity on the face of inancial poadisn
ara;

= o provide an adeguate relumn 1o shareholders by aricing produsts and sandces commensurate wilh the level of rsk;

- ba codnply wilh the capkal reguirgmants set by the Financial Institutions (Capilal Adeguacy Requirements) Regulstions,
2018, Firancis! Insthutions (Capital Buffers and Leverage Ratio) Remdations 2020 and Financial instifutions (Revison of
ihe Minimum Capital Requiremarnts) Statutosy Insirument 2022,

- {o sefeguard the Bank's akility to continue as a going concern, so that 1| can continue b provicde reluins Tor shamholders
and benelits for olber skakeholdars:

= b masviasn & Srong caplel base o suppon e developmeant of its business, and
= o maindain an opfimal capital struciure to reduce the cost of capital.

Capitsl adequacy and use of regulatory capital are monitored regqulady by managemani, employing techniques basad on
the guidalines developad by the Basel Commilies, as implemenied by ibe Bark of Uganda Tor supervisory puposes. The
required information s filed with the Banh of Uganda on a guanedy basis.

Externally imposed capital requirements

The Financial instiubions (Capltal Buflars ard Leversgs Rabio) Regulations 2020 and Firancial Instiliions (Revision of tha
Minimem Cepital Requisements) Statutory Instrumenl 2022 reguere inancia irstiulicns to; {a) hold e minimum el of
regulatory capital of USHh 130 billlan (2021; USke 25 billen); (b) mainain core capilal of nal less than 12.5% of iokal risk
waighied asszeds plus nsk weighted off batance shest terms; and () maintain botal capital of nol less Ban 14.5% af &k
weighied assels plus isk-waighted offbalance shaet ilems

The bank's tolal regulatory capial is diiaad inbe hao tieds

= Toer 1 capital {core capital) shars capial, sharé premium, and retained samings and reserves created by
appropiatons of relaired samings. The book value of goodwill, current yaar losses, prohibibad loans to insiders,
ineestments in unconsolidaled financal stalements, deficiencies in provisions for losses, other dedections
determimad by BOLU are daducted inariving 8t ter 1 capital

- Tier & capital (Supplementary caplial): Ravaluation resarves, genaral prowslons, subordinated debt and hybrid
capial insrumants.

Tha risk welghled assats are measursd by maans of a hlerarchy of four Ask weights classifed according o the nature of
and raflecling an estmale of the cradit risk asseciated with each assef and counterparty A similar treatmant s adopted for
of-bafance sheel axpasune, with some adjustmeants 1o refact the more confingant natura of the potential lnssas
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5, Fimancial risk management [continued)

Tha tabla balow summarizes the compostion of the regulatary capital,

20 o
UsShs 000 UShs 000

Core capltal [Tier 1)

Share capitel 27,000,000 27,000,000

Accumulated profit 6317 M7 26543 662

Dafarred fax (2,220,808) (1,624 258)
Total Tier 1 Capital 61,697,142 51,910,424

Supplementary capital {Tier 2)

Unencumbaned ganeral provisices (FlA) 1,881,897 1824213

Ther 1 capits! 61,657,142 51,919,424

Ther 2 capidal 1,881 657 1,824,213

Total capital (Tier 1 + Tiar 2 63,578,839 93,743,637

The risk—weighied agsels are measursd by means of hierarchy of five nsk weights classfied according o tha nature of and
reflecting an eslimate of credit, markel and markel risks asscciated with each asset and courtarparty, taking Into account
any aligible collateral or guarartess. A similar freabment is adopbed far off-balance shae! axposure, with soma adjustmanta
o reflact the maore contingent natuwe of petential lnasea

Effective Dacember 31, 2022, minimum pald-up cash capital and cagital unmpsired by losses shall not e less than Wsha
120,000,000 thousand and LiShs 150000000 thowsatd by December 31, 2038 ard Juna ¥, 2029 raspacively 8s par
Secton 2 of the Financal Inatildions (Ression of minmum capilal requirements] Instumend, 2022

The Bank's paid-up capital is lass than the raquirement. However, the Bank submitted its capital resloraiion plan o he
Caniral bark as required by the Financial Institutions Act, 2004 and as amended which was aparoved and o be
implamantsd within 150 days Le., June 30, 2023

Introduction of the Basel Il capital requirements

Bank of Uganda has over tha years provided guidelines 1o supervised financial insfiulions on managamaent of capital. From
2018 whan the Market Risk Regulations wera gazete up until December 2021, 3Fis wers halding capilal In accordance
with he Basal | Capital Acoord which anly gowenad credit and markat risks,

I ordar o cater to isks not addressed under Baszal |, BOL decided ta implement the Basel Il Capital Acsord, logather wilh
g edemenis of Basel 0.

Tha Basal || Framework introduces thres pillars for the guantitative and qualitatve mansgament of capizal

Fillar 1 expamnds the minimum capial adequaoy requirement o cover operational in addition 1o credit and market rsks

Piller 2 emgihazizes rlak mansgemenl by reguining each SF1 fo run an Intermal Capital Adeguacy Assessment Process
(HCoAAF) and allocate capial io all the rigks that are considered materal fo i Thes pilfar also requires the regulator (o e
and warify tha adecuacy of the ICAAPS,

Pillar 2 ancouragas transparncy theedgh quantitathve and gualititathe rmare! disclossres,

Bank of Indaa (Uganda) Limilad is alignad to the implemantation plan for the roll out of Bassl || end completed its first ICAARP
reporing in 2022 loliowing & paralel run of bodh Basal | and Il fram June to Decamber 2021,




l Bank of India (Uganda) Limited
Annuad report and financial statomants for the vear endad December 31, 2022
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3. Financial risk managemant (contineed)
l 022 2021
Particulars Balance Sheet  Risk  Risk Weighted Balance Shest Risk Risk Welghted
Mominal Amodnt Waight Armouint Hominal Amount Waight  Amount
UShs 000 % UShs 000 %
UShs "H00 UShs D00
Assals
Motes, cains and clher cash 165,094 0% - 29508528 0 -
auaais
Invastmant in govemmeani T1.316, 102 0% . 69410, 494 0 % .
securilns
l D fraem commercial banks in 31,487 599 20 % BT 520 AT B8, 160 2D % 1541 340
Liganda
Balancy wilh Bank of Uganda 40,028 402 0% 37,110,287 0% .
Placements with locsl Banks 21,740,000 20 % i 348 000 23 457 500 20 5% 4 BES B
Crum froem banks cuiside LUganda
with lengtedmm rating as follows:
ii. Rated BB8 and non-rated ATERIID 100 % 3,765,319 1.2B4.538 100 % 1,264 538
Loans and advances o 167 461,716 100 % 167 461,716 167,111,384 1D0% 161,111,364
custamars [axsluding lsana
secumd by 10d% cash margin}
Cuitslanding balance fully 20,708, 000 0% - 20,636,718 [ % -
secuned by FORIEDR
har assalg 459 196 100 % 459 198 B11. B2 100 % #11,602
' Currenl lag recaivable - 0% . = 100 % s
Defsmad lox assel 2,220 805 0% 3 1,624 258 0% -
Cumant 1ax recafvable . 100 % . BES.041 100 % 585 9419
Property, equipment and rght- £586413 100% 5,586 413 B463,606 100% 6,460,608
' ofuse asset
Tax recoverabin - 0% - 5ES 841 0% -
*Total assats 36T 988 146 187,938,164 363,386,076 182,503 888
I Off balance sheet Harms
Direct cred substilutes 11,736,230 100 % 11,736,230 20536463 100% 3 536463
[ouaramiess and scoeplinces)
Transaclion ralated 0% 50 %
l [parfrrnance bands and
atandbys)
El-a-u.trnenl::ry' creditg ﬁlrada & 52T 117 209 1305423 9519480 20% 1.903 198
refated and st kquidating)
I Ciher commiimems [unJdssad 20,557,181 a0 %% 14,278,581 23,947 460 % 11,873,730
forrmal facities)
Total off balance sheel items 38,820,508 23,330,234 54,003,412 34,414,081
l 10,717 842 211,258,198 415, 165,502 208,806,853
Wigighted fems with market risk 3,330,087
I Wigightad iems wilh operational risk 10,478,588
Total risk weighted assets 238 076 051 208,086,953
. Fl& minimum reguirement Bank's lmver
|Core capital {Tiar 1} 61,687 142 51810 424
I J67 550 246 363,386,076
38 820 604 54,003,412
406, 7T, TE4 417, 389 488
l 6% 5% 15 17% 12.44%
l 35
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

3, Financial risk managemant |cantimeed)

Tha Bank's leverage rafio has smproved in 20227 as compared ta 2021 and sbowe §% which s tha raguinad minimasm ps per
Fegulatian 10 of the Financial Institutions (Cagital Buffers and Loverage Ratio) Regulations. 2020

*This ncluedas the loans and advances nat of impaiment allowance it accordance wih the Financla Instifutions A, 2004,
and as amendad. Balow is tha raconcisation of total as6ats as per statement of nancial positon;

023 2021
UShe 000 UShs 000
Todal assets as per Salemen! of Financial Posifon 356,918,803 362 TE9,050
Less: Loans and advances 1o cuslomer {as par IFES) {187.125,273) (181,747,057)
Add: Leans and sdvances 1o cuglomes (85 per FI Act) 188,188,716 18E, 334,84
*Total assatks (a5 above) J6T 858,246 363, 386,078
Reconcilistion of loan and advances to customers between IFRS and FLA 2022 2021
UShs OO0 UShs "G
Gross lpans and advancas 192,704 252 186,204,118
Less; Specific provision as per FIA 2004 {and as amended) (4. 27001 2) {3,068, 50
Lass: intorest o suponse (264 524 | {1,085
Het loans and advances to customens for regulatory purposaes 188 163,716 182,334 DE4
Reprasanted by:
Cutslandng balance kily sacured by FOR/SDR 20,708,000 20,836,7TH
Laans and advances o cutlomears (exduding loans secured by 100% cash marngin) 167 461 718 181,897 304
1BE 168,716 182,334 DB4
2022 2022 2021 2021
Actual Minirmuwm Actusl Minimum

Requirements Requiremenis
Core capital fo risk assats rato 2741 % 12.50 % 2473 % 12.50 %
Tolal capital ta rsk assels ralin 2835 % 14.50 % 25.59 % 14,50 %
Cradit risk

The Bank lakes on exposure o credil nsk, which is the sk fhal 8 counterpanty will cause a finpncial loss © the Bank by failing
1o pay amownds in full when dwe. Credit risk is the most impeortant risk fior the Bank's business: managament therefone carefully
manages the sxpasure bo aadil fish. Credil axposunes arse pringipally in lending and investmenl activiies. Thara is aleo cradil
risk in off-balance shee financal instruments. such as bban cammiiments, For risk managemanl purposss. crodil fisk ahsing on
trading of sacurities I8 managed independently, bul reporied as a componanl ol marke fsk exposiire,

The Bank strachures the kevels of oredit nsk f undertakes by placeng Bms on the amaunt of risk accepted in redation (o ana
borrowar, or Banks of barrowers, and io indistny segments.

Such nsks are monitored on @ revoiving basis and subject to annual or mone frequent review. Limits on the leval af credi rsk
by product, indusiry gecior and by country are approved quartarly by the Board of Direclors

The sxpoaure to amy one barmpasr inciuding bankes i further restricted by sub-limils coverirg on- and off-balance sheat
axposuras and dally delivery risk limits i redation bo trading Hems such ad forward foreign axchange conbracts. Achisd
axposures agains imits ame monitorad daity,

The credit gk managament end conbrel-ane centraksed in credit and iressuny departments of e bank

annﬂurlng credit riek of loans and advances 1o cestormans: the Bank reflacts on vasdous componants, Thass include:
thia prohakility of default by the borowerciant on their contractusl obligatons;
curreni exposures on the borowanchent and e likely futere development, from which the Bank denves the
expasure al defaull; and
# the lilkely recovery rata on lhe celaulied oblgatons.
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3, Financial risk managemant {continued)

The Hank assedses ihe prababdity of dafaull of individual borrower'client Lsing mtemal rating melhods tallored ko lhe varbous
calagoras of the borrowanicianl. Thess have been devsloped and combine statistical analysls with the credil depanment's
judgmeant and are valldated, whers approprale, by comparisan with edemally svellabla data. Mansgemant assetass the credit
quality iof the customer, taking Eta account their fnanrcial pasition, past expeanence and othar faciors. Indiidus limils are sat
hased on intarnal or extemal informaton in accordance with limits sal by the managemant. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly manitored, Comactive action Is teken whene necessary,

Investmeants

Far investmants, intarmal ratings taking into account the requirements of the Financial Instiution A<t am vsed by the Bank for

managing the credit risk exposures. The imvesiments i those secunities are wewed as & way 1a gain a baller credil gualily
mappiry and mamlain a readily available source to meat the funding rguirmean at the sama tmea.

Risk limlt control and mitigation policlas
The Bank manages ks credit rsk. inter-alia by

L Formulating credi policies covering collateral requirerments, credil sssessment risk grading, legal procedures for
documentafion, reporting and complance wilh regulatory and statulory reguinements.

- Establishing the aulhorty siructure for agproval and rerewal of cradil faclifies, Discretionary landing powers have
baen allocatad to the Cradit Committes of Boand, Credil Managesenl Comnitiee, Managing Diractor, A=zsisient
Geneal Managers, Chéaf Managars! Sendor Branch Managers, Credit Commitiee of the Board 1o averssee tha credit
parifciic of fie Bank,

- Devedoping and malmaining e Bank’s risk grading In onger 10 categorise exposures accondng o degree of risk of
financial loss faced and the focus on management of conseguent risk or loss, The curant sk gradng ramewos
consist of & categories of riak grades reflecting Fha varying grades of risk of default and aveilability of collatarats o
othar sk meligetes, rsk grades are subjeal fo regular raveaw by the bank,

. Seiting exposure limits e, credit concendration, The Bank has in place a framework of expesure celing of various
indusirios, counterpartias. country (for imvastment secuiliss] abe.

- HFeview and assessment of eradil fsk - The Bank carmes oul 8 conscous assessmant of credit exposure In excess of
dasignataed Emits, prior o the fBciliies being commified o the customer. This i a pad of the appraisal systam for
processing M raquest of bormowss for & credil facikly. Renewals and review of credit faciiies ans also subject o Be
same appralsal eritaria,

- Feview ol {he compliance of the vanous ragulaiony imits, exposune cellings ale. at reguisr intervals by the Bana

= Tha managament provide assistance o the business units®ranches b pramole best practices for cedit appraisal
thraughout ®e Bank in managamant of credit risk

Ench branchibusiness unils are responsible for implementing, complyng and monsibodng with the credil polcies n crdear bo build

up & quality credt partialic, including tose which arm sanctionsd by haad office. Regular audt of the branches & endertakan
by the intermial audit.

Soma ather spacfic conirol ana mitgalion measures ere outined balow:

Collataral

Tha Bank amploys a ranpe of policies and practices o miigate credd rsk. The mest common one is to obtain collstaral for
kzans and advances to customers. The types of collaters! oblained inolude:

= Mongages over proparies;

= Charges owver busineas assats such as land and bulldngs, invanton snd meceivables

- Charges over financial instremants such as inesfimenis;

. Deposits placed under Ben.
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3. Financial sk mansgement [continueed)

Exposure to cradit sk s managed fwough regular anaiysis of the abdity of borrowers and potontal bomowers 19 moel intones]
and capital repaymat abligations and by changing kending limiss whoere appropriate. Exposure 1o credi rsk s also maraged in
part by sbtaining collateral and corporete and persanal guarantess, bui a significant porfion is personal lending whara no such
tacilitins can ba obiainad

Credit-ralated commitmants

The primary purpeae of these instrements is o gnswng that funds ane avalable to a sustamer as required, Guaraniess and
standby latiers of credid, which rapresant irevacabls assurarces thal the Bank will make payments in the evan that 8 customas
cannal meal ils oblgalions to thrd parbes, carry the sama credil rigk a3 loang. Docurmentary and commercial lettars of credd,
wilvich are writien underakings by the Bank on bahall of a customer categorized a third party o draw drefts on the Bank up toa
stipulated emount under specific terms and conditions, ane categarizations by the undedying shipmeats of goods 10 Whch they
redate and therefone carmy less risk than a direct barmosing

Cammitments {6 sdend credil repredent unused parions of calegorzalions o extend credit in the form of loans, guarentess of
letters of cradil. With respect to credt nisk on commitments 1o extend credit, the Bank & potentially exposed bo loss in an
amount aqual b the kotal unused commitments. Howewas, the tkely amount of loss @ less han ibe otal unused commiiments,
a8 mosi commitnants bo esend credit are contingont upon customers maintaining Speciic credil standends.  The Bank
maniiors the erm 1o meiurity of credil commitments becauss longer-term commillmeants genedally have & greatar degres of
cradit rigk than shorter-larm commibments.

Maximum exposiurne o credit risk bedore collaleral held

dnze 2021
UShs 0G0 UShs 000

Daposit and balances duas from other financial metitutions B3 287659  B1,204.201
Crie fromi group companies 3, 7B5,319 1,264,663
Cash and Balances with Bank of Uganda 40028402 37,110,267
Irvestmant in government Securties 71,316,102  BD.425.512
Ciiher assels 458,188 11,602
Laans and advances (o cuslomars 192,704,252 186,204,118
Credit exposure relating lo off-balance sheet lems!

Letiers of credit 6527117 8,515 469
Cuaraniees and eccaptancas 11,738.230 20,536,463
Lincrawn formal stand-by tacilities, cradil ines and siber commiments 1o lend 20,557,161 23,847 460

400,341,378 410,043,837

The table above represents a worst ceae scanario of credit risk exposure o the Bank withowt laking accounl of any collabesal
held or athar cradid enhancements attached. For on-balance sheo! assets, the éxpodures e oul above &g basad an camying
amounts as reportad N the stalsment of financial positon.

Az shown abowve, 48.13% (2021 45.41%) of the totad mammusm exposyre of the bank is derved from bang and advances 1o
banks and customers 17.81% (2021 18.93%) reprosents imvestiments in gavemment Secunties.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The bark's intermal and esfemnal systems foeus more on credd quallty mapping from the incaption of the kanding of the loan or
advence. |n contrgst, impalrement provisions ane recognised for Snancial reporting puarposes only for ksses Bal hive baen
incured at the statemant of inancial position dale tased on objeciive evidence of mpaimment.

The impalmment pravision shown in the siatemant of Mnancial posilion at the year-and s darivad aftar taking various fecions info
cansideration as descibad in the accounting policy. The Bark's manageman] uses tass undar IFRS 9 and the Prudential
Grsdalines o delgeming tha amauni of Impainment

Management is confident on its ability to confinue to contral and sustain minimal expasure of cradit risk o the bank resulting
trarm both ik ban and advances poffalio and debl zecurifies basad on the follosing:

= TH% (2021 58%) al the loanas and advances porticls ane ralithar past due nor impered

o B0 (2021 98%) of the koang are backed by coflaberals

ig
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3. Financlal risk management {continued)
* 100% (2021: 100%) af the mvesimants in debt Securities ar governmant securities.
L] The Bank exancisas stingend conindd over graniing al new loans

Loans and advances am categorized as follows:

2033 20H
UiShs ‘000 LiShs ‘000

Stage 1 I8 ZT3, 600 163,745 845
Staga 2 813474 18,676,738
Stagm 3 11,617,978 ATAT B34
Gross loans and advancas 192,704,252 186,204,118
Empairnant allowance (5.311.258] {4,455 977)
Enilzrest in suspense (263,724 {1.085)
Loans and advances - nat 187,129,273 184747087

Loans and advances that am past dus for 10 days or less are classified in slege 1, loans sl advances thal are past dos for

mare tham 30 days bul 1ess than 91 days are classified in stage 2 and loans and advences that are pas! due for O1 days o
mare are ciassified in stage 3.

Loans and advances renegotiated

Tha contraciual lerms of & loan may be modified for 8 number of reasans, including changing marke! condilions. cuslomes
retartian and other factors not related 1o & curent or potential cradil deterdioration of the customer. An existing koan may be
deracognised and the ranegotisted koan recognised as a new loan 8 fair value. The Bank rensgaliabes loans to customers in
Frmancial difficulties 1o maxmise collection opportunities and minimiss the sk of Selaul, Under e Bank's credil palicy, loan
reftruciure is granied on a sslective tasls B tha deblor |s curmantly in dafaull on its dabt or if ters 8 a high sk of defaull, thare
|5 evidence Fal the dablor madae &ll reasonabla afiorts to pay undar tha crigina! contracthusl terme and the debtar ks expescted io
be able o meel ihe revisgsd berms,

Tha revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest and prncipal paymants and amaending
the bermms of loan cowenants. For the purposes of disclosures in these financial sistemeants, loans with renegotated erms’ are
defined as lcans that have baen restructered dua bo 8 datadoration in the barrewer's credit fek peofile, for which be Bank has
fidds eontessiong by agrivesng bo tesms and conditions that am more fevcurabia fior the bormower than the Bank had provided
inilally and #ad it would nol otherwise consider. & loan continuas to be preseried as part of loans with renegobiated tarms undll
matunty, earier repayment or wtl it is withen off,

Concentration of cradit risk
Econamic sactor rfak concarntrations within the sans ansd sdvances portfolio are as followa:

At December 31, 2022

Loans and Credit
advances commitments
S k-
Biuilding and oconstruction 40.13 38.57
Trade arnd commaroae 24,85 20.40
Manufsciuring 14.58 13.849
Apriculiunsl 11.52 032
Business sarvices 3.18 0.87
Transpor and comemunication 1.58 012
Comemanity social and olber sandoas 3,14 0.22
Fersona! and housshold 1.05 2541
Gross 104,040 100,04

4
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3. Financial risk manesgemant {contimeed)

At Decembar 31, 2021
Loans and Credit
advancaes commitmanis

% %
Building and construction 3810 2621
Trade and commearce 2170 254
Manufaciuning 1857 17.50
A priculiural 15.00 11,482
Busiress sarvices 46T 4,70
Tranzpon and eommiesicalion 1M oAy
Cammunity social and other sanices 1.1 -
Fersonsl and household 1.54 534
Gross 100.00 o000

Liguidity risk

Lizusdity risi is the risk hal the Bank is unabla to meel its peyment obiigations assocated with is financial liabiites whan thy
fall dus and 1o replece funds when thay am overdrawn The consequence may be the falure 1o meat obligations 1o repay
depositors and full commitmants (o and

The Bank is exposed 1o dally calls an iz availebie cash resources fram overmight deposts, curent aocounts, maturing depost
and calls on cash sattled cordingancies. The Bank does nol maintain cash resources to mee! all these nesds a5 axperienca
that a mendmasm leval of refnvestiment of matunng funds can be predcied with a high level of seralnty

Tha Bank of Uganda requires that the Bank masntens a Cash Feserve Ralio, In addilion, the Board sets limits on the FRIFAIFILIE
praporiion of matiring lunds avadable fo meat such calls and on the minimum nter-bank and ather bormowdng faclliies that
should ke in place io cover withdrewels at urespected level of demand. The fressury depaiment of the Bank moniiors tha
Bouidity ratin on a daily basis.

The table owvaerleal anslysas the Bank's financial assels and Gabilifes info the relevani mabwrity growpings based on the
remaining paricd al fha balance shaat date to tha contrachual maturity dale

41
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3. Financial risk managemant (continwed)

At Decambar 31, 2022

Upto 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 8 years  Over 5 years Total
UShs ‘000 UShs 000 UShs ‘000 UShs '000 UShs "0 Li5ihs "0
Assats
Gash and balances with g, 194 286 - C = 43 1894 296
Bank of Uiganda
Invastment in govarmmient G0a. 708 7.841. 764 35,702 450 22,907,840 4,375 240 74,218 902
sacuriliss
Due from group companies 3,785,319 - - 3 TE5. 319
Deposit and balancas dus 53,237,509 - - 53,227 594
from athar financial
instiutions
Loans and advanoas o 35,275,158 13,004 456 47 27T R0 61525636 35,605,370 102,704,252
cusicmers
Total assets 136,401 880 20, 8EE 26D H2 GTE 447 HI 933 ETE 30 980,610 364,217 568
Liahilities
Deposit and balances dua o 12,000,000 . 12,000, 000
othar financial instikbions
Cusiomer deposils 15428, 325 55 703,223 147,168,172 3,534 600 - 222 235,520
Owe o group companios &7, 749 602 - - - - a7, fag.an2
Other lisbilkieg ETIT 618 - 1,020,118 5,440,768 - 9,178,502
Total Habilities B7.BOG.B43  BE 703223 148,183.290 9,375,368 - 301,183,724
Mot liquidity gap 43,584,837  (34,B36,963) [65,212,848] 74,548,208 39,980,610 63,063,544
Off-balance shael itams 23,163,735 i.ﬂlﬂiﬁﬁn 11,8549 123 - - 35,820,508
Owerall nat p-ntllinﬂ 251121,1-02 {.ﬂrﬂl-l-.i-"l!] (T8, 771871} 74,548 308 35,080 618 24 243 336
Al Decembar 31, 2021
Totnl assels S 0AT 920 16,943,651 B4 227,864 138,230,512 13,260,154 354, 108 301
Tokal liabilfes 73,876 950 TO,7ET G52 150,063,238 5825441 4,304,555 304843138
Het liquidity gap 24170070 (59,824,301] (55.840,374] 132405071 B,955,590 49,566,065
O#-baiance shee items 30,340,286 B.795,081 14,335,841 2,652,202 54,000,412
Overall ned position (6, 1580,216) (88819384) (TOA76215) 129,852 360 2,955,590 [#,137.347)
&z
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3. Financial risk managemant {continued)
Marketl risk

Market risk is the rizk Sal changes & merket pices, which include curency sxchangs rales and inemest rales, will affect the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. Marke? fsk arises fram opan positions in inderest rates and feeaign
currencies, both of which are exposed to general and specific market movemerts and changes in the leval of volatiiny. The
Obpactiva of markat sk managament is o manage and control market nsk exposures within sccaptabie limits, while the mtum
an rsk. Owarell saponsibidy for managing market risk rests with the Board Assets and Liabililiess Commiltes. The Traasury

W I8 responsible for the development of detailed risk mansgement policies and Tor the day to day implemaniaton of
za paolicas,

The majar measurameant technigues used b measure and conlrol markat risk ere cutined below:

Sirass tasl

Siress test provides an indication of e potantial size of losses that could arfss in esiréme condilions. The skass lpsts camad
out by the ireasury deparment include: risk factor, stess testing whare siress movementia are epplied 1o aach rigk calegory,
amerping markel stress lastng, whare amaning memke! pociokes @ subject bo siress mevements and ed-hoc sireas testing,
which includes applying possibie slross events to specic posllions of reglons - for example the $iress culcome to a ragion
follewing curmency pag break, The results of the airess tesls are reviewsd by sanior managemcnt in each busness wwil, Tha
giregs les is failorad to fhe busiress and fypically uses scenarlo analysis.

Foralgn exchangs rak

The Bank™s assels are iypically fundsd in he same currency as fthe business iransacied o eliminales forelgn eschangs
sapoaures. However, the Bank mahians an open pasition within the tolarance limits prascribed by Boll and approved by $e
board.

The Bank is exposed to forgign éxchange risk arising from vanous currency exposunes primarily with respect 1o the US Dolfar,
Eurp and G3F. Tha risk arsas froem fulere Irenssctions, aasets and Babililies in the stalemsant of financial posiion date.

The intrediay positions are menaged by treasury theowgh stop osaidasles Bmits. End of day posiltions ane marked o marked,

The table below summarises (he effed on post-tax profl and components of equity had the Ugands Shillings weakenad by
10% against sach currency, wim all aiher varables held constant. If the Uganda Shilling strengihaned against each currency,
Ihe effect woeuld have baen the oppossie. The 10% Ssensilivity represents Desecior's assessmeni of the reasonable change in
exchange ratea,

Effect on profit (decresse)

Currancy o2z 2021
Ushs 000 UShs "G00

LIS Dollar 830,408 532,275
Eurty {B.583) (5,568)
E3p {8628} {4.660]
Orhars {410} _{3.008)
Total B14, 787 69,039
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3. Financial risk management {continued]

Currency risk

The Bank |s sxpossad o currency rigk through transactions In foreign curmencias, The Bank's bansactonal exposares give rise
te foraign curreancy gaine and losses that ere recognised in the incame sistemant. In raspact of monalary sssats and lisbdities
in forsign curmancies, the Bank ensures that its nal exposure is kept fo an scceplable level By buying and zalling fonsign
currencies 81 spod rales when considensd approgriate

Tha agnificant curancy posilions are dataded below:

At December 31, 2022
usD GRP EURD H3HS Others Total
UShs ‘000  UShs 000  UShs 000 LEShyE "00D USha "00D LFShs "D
Azgaety
Cash and balancas with Bank of B, 288 BED 2284 19,222 350 - 8220 766
Liganida
Diug frafk groun Eompanies . 134 432 118,067 1608 3,857 257 964
Depaosits and balances due fram 45 408 351 - - - - 44, 499331
omher financial inatibuliona
Loane and advances to cuslomars 153,151,188 - - - - 153,151,186
Total nsswts 210,850,437 136,726 137,289 1,098 3,857 211,138,307
Liabdlities
Clistormer dapasis 145,509,131 42,004 14,674 . - 145,565,839
Due 1o group eompanies 57.749 902 . - - - 57,740,802
Onhar Nghilitias 1,200 035 - - 1,200, 035
Total liabilities 204,453 068 42 34 14,674 . - 204,515,776
et foreign currency exposura 400, 163 B4 E032 122,615 1,958 3,857 6,823,531
Oif-balance shaal lems (18, 283,346) - - - - {18,263, 348)
Owvarall foreign currency axposurs 011,882, 977) 4 552 122,615 1,993 3857 {11,639 815)
A1 Decamber 31, 2021
Tatal pssets 200,422 561 83,99 80,780 0,646 33,329 200,630 307
Tabal Rabilies 196, 103,062 17.418 1,242 - - T893 121 740
Hat farelgn curmency exposura 2,319479 66,575 78,534 9,646 33,329 2,508 567
CHF-balancs shas! isms {18,359, 865) - - - - (16,351 9435)
Overall faraigh cufrency sxposure {14,032 506) 66,575 70,538 9,645 33,329  [13.B43.418)
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3.  Financial risk management |continued)

Exchange raies used for conversion of foreign (lems wena;

U3 Daller 3.720 3,545
GED 4478 4, TTE
Eurg 3.942 4015
INR 45 48
K5h 30 a
Interest rate fsh

Tha Bank's oparsticing wha sulijact 10 the dsk of interet! rals luciualions io the adenl thal infarest eaming assals and nleneal
bearing liablites matuse or reprice at different drmes or v difersent amounts. Rsk manegement activilles ars simed al
opibrizing net ntarest iIncoms, ghven market interasi rates |levels consistent with the Bank’s business strategies.

The Bank |3 exposed to vadous nsks associabed with the effects of Augtuation 0 the prevaling levels of macke! inlarest rates an
Its fnancial pasition and cash flows. The managemani closaly monitor the inrterest rale rends 1o Minmize he palanial advems
impast of inberast rale changes

The lable bebow swmmarises the exposure b interast rate risk at the repocting date. Included in fha talle are the asiets and

lighnikes af carmying amounts, cetegorsad by the earlier of conraciua repricing or maturity dates. The Bark doss nof havs &y
dertvativa fnancal nsinemants. The Bank doas nof bear an ntcrast rate sk on off balarca sheat ibams.

At Decambar 31, 2022

Upteimonth 1lo3 3o 12 1is5  Owver Syears Total
UShs ‘000 menths manths YEATS UShs "000
UShsmon UShs'000 UShs 000 UShsDon
AEEalE
Inwastmant i govermmant sacuritias B0, 708 TE41,764 G5 TIHS4R 26741604 - T1.301.024
Daposits and balances due fram 21,740.000 - . . - 21,740,000
other fnancial instilulions
Loans and advances 1O CUSIDmaS 35 275,758 13,024,456 4T 273, 882 7. 137,006 - 182, 7042152
Totad assals 58,014,486 20868260 82909040 123,872,610 - 2B5,745,175
Liabifitias
Cuslomer deposils. 897,519,784 33022058 115328477 1,753,574 - 4T 634 831
Deposils and balances dus to other 12,000, 000 - - - - 12,000,000
firancal inglitutions
Otiner Kahilities - - 1,221,791 3,865,934 553,785 5,841,510
Duee lo growp companies - - 57749902 - - 57,748 302
Total liabilities 109,519,784 33022056 174301170 56109448 553785 323,016,242
Interast sensitvity gap {51,505 318) (12155706} (91,309,230} 118253162 (553,785 (37270967
&t December 31, 2021
Tolal assels 97 461,080 10,343,651 04,227 B4 151,490 666 - 354123380
Total Eabililies T4O4T 3ZR TOTETOS? 150073495  10,129.799 1516374 3058818 &74
Interast sensitivity gap 22,513,752 (59824301} (55.B45631) 141,360,867 (1,516,374} 48204 606

The matching and controlled mismatching of Te maturities and interest rates of assets and Fabiities is fundamental o The
managamant of the Bank, It is unusual for banks ever lo be complately matehed sinca business Fansacted is often of uncerian
tarms and of delfarend bpes, An unmelched podation patentally snhances proftebity, but can also ncrease tha risk of bsses
Management is of the wiew lhal lhe mésmalch doss nol subject the Bank lo severs liguidity risks because matunties for all
gowernment gacurites and halancas with overseas banks can ba mstruchrad n accordance with business demands.
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3. Financial risk management |continuad)

Interest rate risk sansitivity

Az at Decamibar 31, 2032, If inteves] rates had beean 10% lowerighes wilh all olher variables held constanl, post-tax profit ard
oquity for the year would have bean WShs 1412 milllon (2029: USha 1291 million) owanhighes, aqeing mainly a5 & resull of
changs N intemesl income and expanse

The abawve is fried io ba achizved by develapmant of cwerall standards for the bank to manags the risk in the fallowing areas:

L] " & & & = &

Segregation of dulies incleding independent authorisation of ransactions

Monitoring and reconciliaion of iransactons

Compliance of regulatory and legal requirement

Documentation of control and procedura

FAsgagament of the operabional dgk on a periodic basis to address the deficiencies obsarved, i amy
Reparting of operafonal lasses and Inftfation of remediad action

Devslogrmant af sonfingency plan

Giving trening %o siaff 1o improve thelr professionsl compatancy

Ethizal and business standards

Otasnéng insurande whersver feasible, &5 a nsk mitigaticn maasure.

ek moasurement and contral

Intzresl rate, currancy, credit, liquidity and other risks ame actively menaged by management {0 ensure complance with the
bank's Ask limits The bBaak's risk limits are assessad regulady to enswre ther sppropiatenass given ils objectives and
gtrategles and current marke! conditians. A varety of techriguas are wsed by the bank in maasuring ihe Hsks inharenl in &5
tracling and non-trading positans.
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2022 2
UShs DD UShe "D
4, Inferest income
Laans and advences 20,778 B33 20.BES 253
Timasury bonds 5,222 584 4,088,701
‘I'“muury b#Hls 3498162 3,157,541
Dieposits and balences due from other financial institlubions. 1,870,168 2078447
31,360,764 30,187 342
5 Interest expanss
Time daposiis 10. 783620 11,374 816
Savings accounts 173662 1326572
Current and demand daposits 37 8543 45319
Loase [inbifitins 193,546 206,181
11,188,071 11,758 983
B, Hon-nierest income
Faas and commisson indoma 2. B35 85D 3038074
Faralgn exchangs diffarence 448 03 55 451
Giaim on sale of property and equipment 14,308 -
Giain on demacagnition of righf-of-use-assel - o 03
3,302,255 3.891.228
7. Opserating expenses
Employee cosis (nota B} 2704565 2440718
Dispraciation {nole 1§) 1,488,055 1,288 448
Bad dabis wriltan ol 1,392,115 1.026.225
Tebaphone and lax 922 goT 841 616
Insuramce 528,260 G086 60T
Fea chargas 575,581 G847, 151
Othayr gapianses 312,150 248 225
Subscripions 61,876 Y02 200
Bank charges 237819 214917
Siaff wealfare 230,044 13,533
Printng and staticnery 143,155 146 065
Auditors remuneration 107,545 1444 GGG
Renls and rates 05,338 BT TTH
A wnrtising B4 543 16,356
Travelfing 85,202 78,738
Rispairs and mainkananca 76,853 23,765
Directors’ emalumerts 52838 34,808
Conaulling and prafesaional fees 25,661 17,754
Danations 10,062 18,110
9,348 340 8,808,883
8. Employse cosis
Sataries and wages 28507 715 2174273
Ciihir banafits 81.573 57 424
Mational social secunty fund contribution 135277 a0
2. T04, 565 449,718

AT
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2022 2021
Ushs “000 Ushs "000

9. Taxation

Major componants of the tax expanss

Currant

Local inooma {ax - curmant petiod 2080370 G070

Wilhhalding tax ("WHT") an ifvestmen incams 1,744,982 1115001
3,834 582 1. 732340

Diefarrod

Origlhatng and reversing lemporany differenees {506,347)  1,264,292)
3238176 46T 918

Reconciliation of the fax expense

Racancliafion batwean accounting profit and tax expense.

Agcounling profil 13279369 10,398 534

Tao: at the apphcabis 2 rabe of 0% (2021: 3] 3883811 4119557

Tax effect of adjustments an taxabhe income

Final tax (WHT) on investmant income 1,744,152 1115001

Tax an ncome subject o Sal WHT (2616227} (@178 554)

Pt period adpureimanis 107 182 (1,647 854)

Man-daduciités expanoas 19257 S8 308
3238178 457818

“WHhholding lax, which B currently & 209 on below 10 years and 10% an 10 years and above on imleres! Income from
gawernmart sscuritias (Treasury bills and bonds), s treated as final tas,

** bncome nob sublect to tax mlales to income eamed on povemment securties that had already had withholding tax as a final
=L E

10. Cash and balances with Bank of Uiganda

Cash on hand 3165 B 2558620
Balances with Bank of Uganda 4002402 37190267

43,194,296 30,658,896

Balancas with Bank of Uganda include the mandatony daposils which afe adviesd lartreghily by the Central Bank baged on tha
depasil balances held for the past two weeks. The amount advised Includes caah and balances hald wih Bark of Uganda and
this amourd not available to Fnance the day o day activities of the Bank. Balances In excess of the edvised amount 5 howavar
availabda 1o fnance the Banks nvestment aclivilies. As al December 31, 2022, the mandatory deposils were 10% of tofal
depagis (2021 11% of odsl taposing)
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waz 2021
UShs ‘D00 UShs 000

11, Investment in government securities

At amortised cost

Treasury bifs S0.BB3,.311 6,683, 3148

Treasury bonds 40435781 32,732 254
71316102 62425572

Lesa: lmpainmenl allowanss - {15,078}

.316,102 69,410,454

Tha Bank hag not reclassified any financial assea from amortised cost o fair value, or from fair velue 1o amorised cost dunng
Ui currant ar prior yaar,

Az al the reporing dale the bank pledped ireasury bills of 384 days to UShs 1,000 million (2021: UShs Nil } with Bank af
Uganda

12 Duwa from group companies

Bank of India, Londor - GEP 134 432 Bl 843
Bank of India, New York - US Dollar A 527 A58 1005, 582
Bank of india, Parls - Eung 118,057 &0 823
Bank of india, Nairobi- K5h 1.608 %288
Bank of ind@, Mumbal - INR 5,857 R B
3,785,318 1,284 665
Lass; Impalrment allowvances - (125)

3,785,319 1,284,536

13, Deposit and balances due from (ta} ether financial nstitutlons

iDua from oither financial ins¥utons in Uganda 227 888 61,204,200

Diee bo other inancal instdutiors o Uganda (12,000,000) (13,826,95T)
41,227 8899 47 36T 244

Less: Impaimant alloswance - 17541

41,227,593 47,358,703

14. Loans and advances to customers

Chvordrafis B3, DEd FR2 T 105,588
Tarm kaans 109,619,700 116,088, 532
Grose keang and advances o cusismens 192 F04 252  188.204,118
Less: impainment allosance {5.311.288]  [4.455.8576)]
Less: Intarest in suspanse [2E3, 724} (1.085)

167,120,273  181.747.057

Reconciliatbon aof impairment allowance for loans and advances and off balance axposure

All empaimad loans have been whitten down 1o thair estimated recovarabia amounl. The aggregate camymg amount of mpdaired
ioans 8t December 51, 2022 was UShs 11,817 milllon (20271: Ushs 587 milllon) on which provision of UShs 4,432 million
(2021: UShs 3 T8 miflion} is created

Advancas o cusbomens inchede lnans o employees of UShe 646 mélon (2021 UShs 674 milkon) The walghied average
affeciva intarast raede on lecad curmency lbans and atdyances o cuslomers as al Decembar 31, 2022 was 17.04% (2021: 18.0%)
and 9.48% (2021: 8.0%) for forelgn curmency loans and advances
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UShs 000

202 2021
USha 000

14. Loang and advances to customers (continued)

The makimum exposurg o oredil sk at the feporling date s e faér value of each ciass of loan menticnad sbove. The
company dosa not keld any callalaral as ascurily.

Loans and advances OHf balanca
s sheet
Decemnber 31, 2022 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal Stage 1 Total
Al stan of the year a21,738 2,704 3.781,834 44085976 08427 %, 25654 403
Chawga | (cradit) 1o profil and loas [211,540) 418,592 650,235 055279 - 855,275
At the end of year 410,180 469288 4430770 8,311,298 508,427 5,819,682
Loans and advancas Off balance
sheet
Decambar 31, 2021 Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Tolal Stage 1 Total
A starl of the yoar Far. i< E11, 707 828 475 1,875,830 88,283 2042228
Change ! {onedit) to profit and oss (116,008 (SER004) 3155058 2480046 A42. 128 2E2ZATE
At the end of year &21,739 52,7103 3,781,534 4455976 08 427 4,064 405
15, Other assets
Prepaymants 278 2 243383
Security depasits 102674 102818
Clearing accoant 41 888 34810
Crihar receivables 33,341 430,533
459 155 811,602

i6. Tax pald
Balanon al baginning of the year GBS 541 39,946
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loes (3,834 522)  (1,722.210)
Balance al and of the year 1,260,610 (S85.841)

{1,987,971)  (1,548,104)

a0
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2022 202
Ushs "000 UShs 000

17. Deferred tax asset

Deferrad income fax s calcuiabed using the enacied incoma f@x raie of 30% (2021: 30%). The movamant on the defesrad
incoma lax accounl ja as Tolows,

Dufarred tax azasl 2230 BO5 1.624 258

Heconcilation of defarrad tax asset | [1kabiliby)

At baginning of year 1,624 250 25 BEG
Leages 102 BE8 418828
Property and equipment {41,073} (1B 186}
Imparmant allowanca 807 326 663 461
Unraalisad foralgn axchangs diffarances 134 4086 2378
Prior paniod adjustments {107 1683) =

2,220,603 1,624,250

Recognition of deferred tax assel

An antity shall disclose the amoaunt of & deferad tax asset and tha natura of the evidance supportng its recognition, whan:
& e ulilisation of the defarred tax assel = dependent on futisre taxable profits in excess of the profils arsing [rom the
reversal of axisting taxabde temporary diffarences; and
= e antity has sufferad a loss in ehar the cumrment ar preceding pened in the e urisdection to which ihe dafermed tax
assel rzlales

18. Property, equipmant and right-of-use assels

2z FLiFL
Cost Accumulated Carrying valus Cost Accumulated Camying value
depreciation depreciation

IT equipment &444 220 (2. 155.961) 248 354 2288517 {2,006 270 153 247
Crifice aquipmsant d17.517 {385 481} 32004 414 238 {3668,585) 45 651
Elaclrical fittings TOE 247 (B4 B3} B3, D0 EG9 338 {B26,168) 43 239
Furniture and ttings 586, BEE (512471} T4 415 572 956 (480,007 B2 049
Motar vehicles 160,000 (1 60, D0 ) - 160 000 {160,000 .
Feght-of-uss asaets 9,838,932 (4,671,233} 5,168 544 3447 534 13,351,114 6,0596.420
Total 15,649,054  {10,062,541) 5,586,413 15,043 183 (8,573,687) 6,469 606

Recanciliation of property, equipment and right-of-uss assets - 2022

Opening Additions Depreciation  Closing

Balarcs Balance
Elecirical fittngs #3234 401548 (20,784} 83,004
Furm&ure and fitting= H2 044 13,830 (31.564) T4.4%5
Office equipment 45 651 3,240 (16,895 32,035
IT eguipment 182 247 155,702 {219, 680) 248 250
Right-of-use assets 6.006.420 192401  (1,320122) 5,16E.689

B, 469 G0 05862 (1,483,085 5 3BE413

&1

r
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mzz 2021
WShs 000 LiShe ‘000
18 Property, equipment and right-of-use assats (conbinued)
Reconcllilation of property, equipment and right-of-use assets - 2021
Opaning Additions Disposals Daprociation  Closing
balanca balance
IT equipment 217004 28,245 . (231, 80) 162 247
Elecirical fitimgs =R r 1204 - S Rt 43,234
Furnifurg and fitings 1a 0654 1.080 - (50,2300} g, Dag
Office egulpmant o 4ea a {24,817} 45,651
Kotar wehidas 26 250 = = 26,250) -
Righl-ol-use assals B, 092 605 1,084 350 [160.845) (520.685) 6,096 420
6,815,204 1,303, 604 (160,845} {1,288 448} §,450 B0E
18. Share capitfal
Authorised
2,700,000 Crdinany shanas of LShs 10,000 each 27,000,000 27,000,000
Issued and paid-up
Ordinary shares 7000000 27000000
20. Ragulatory credit risk reserve
Al the atard of the year 1973324 S50 850
Movement (332 A70) 294,189
Oithar anpustresant [75.883)
Closing bakanco Bd0 454 1473324
Provisben as per Fl Act 2004 and g ameanded
Soacific provision 4270012 3,781,730
Ganeral provision 1681687 1847570
651,71 5629300
Less: Impairment alowance under IFRS o 53112565 4485576
Rogulatory credi risk resenms BG4S 1173024

The regulaiory reserde replesents Bn appraphation from retained eamings o comaly with Bank of Ugsnda's Prudantal
Regulations. The balance in the resanse represants e excess of Impalmant provisions datarmined in acoordance with the
Prudeniial Regdations over the impalrmant provisions recognized in accordance wiath the Bank's accouniing policy. Thes
regarye 5 non-desiributatde.

21. Dueto group companks

Bank af India, USA
Bank of India, LK

27 4T 360 12407 500
20802642 44 312500

57,749,802 56,720,000
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2022 2021

Li8hs 000 LUShs 000
22, Customer deposits
Current and demand accounds 3142650 27450243
Savings accounts 26 238 AT 28,539 136
Tima daposits 164,654,081 170,659 851

222 218,018 224,549 309
3. Other labiliies
Leasa liahiktias (note 28) 5,641,510 B223 26T
Other payabies 1,028,322 1.204 441
Govermment dues payable 926, 193 910,83
Accruad expansas T13 336 850 B05
imparmeani allowance on of-balance sheot lems (note 14) SOB 427 SOBAZT
Bank choques payakbie 26,991 29,481
Dividends payabla - 3240000

8314772 12975824

24. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda (note 10) 43154796 33,650,896

Cash rasarm raquirmmant (2F.430,000) (30,6483913)
Governman sscurities maturing wathin 50 days from the date of acguisition 5BT3 544 4432110
Duwe fram group companies {note 12) 3.785.319 1.294 535
Deposils and kalancas dus froen othar financial insthitions (note 13) B3 22T B04 81204 301

T.650,764 T5.240.830

Faor the purposes of the statoment of cash flow, cash and cash aquivalents comgeise balamses with lass than 90 days malurity
from tha date of acquisiion including: cash and halances with cenfral banke, traasury bills end ofther sligibla bille, and amaunia

due from alher banks. Cagh and cash equivalants exclude the cash fesensas requiremant hold with tha Bank of Uganda

Banks are reguired bo maintain a prescribed minimum balance with the Bank of Ugande the usege of which s subject i
regtrictions. The gmownt & dalermined as a perontags of e average cutstanding deposits over a cash masaree oycle pariod
of two weoks

25. O balance shas! financial instruments, contingent liabilities and commitmanis

In common with other banks, the Bank conducls business myolving scceptances, letiers of credil guarantess, perormance
bands and indemnites, The majority of these facllties are oftsat by comesponding obligations of thind paries. In eddition,
there are other off-balance shest financial instrumanis including foreard contracts for the purchase and sala of rmlgn
currencias, the nominal amaunts fos which are not mBacted in the statement of financial posthon,

Contingent labilities

latters of cradit 6,527,117 8,518,480

Guarantess and acceptances 11,736,230  20,536.463
18,263 347 30,055,852

Commitmeanis

Uindrenm forrral stand-by faciities, credit ines and ather commiments 1o lend 20,557,181 23,947 480
20,557 161 23,947 460

Ratar io nota 22 for impairmant allvwancs on offbalance shaat financial instuments. contingent labiities and commidmants.
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25. Losns and advances to customers [continued)

Matura of contingant llabilitles

Leltecs of credit, acceplances, guaranteas and performanca bonds are generally wiktten by the Bark 1o suppor perlormancs by
B owsiomer o third pamies. The bank wil only be required [0 meat thase obligations in the evant of the custome's defauwl,
Thassa obligations Bre sccountad lof ga off balance sheal ransactions and discosed in contingent llakilities.

Contingent liabiitias are securad by bhoth cash ard progerty collatarals

Mature af cammliments

Cromamétments o lend ano agreameants to nd fo & cuslomsr in lulure subject bo cerdain conditions.  Such commitments ans
normadly mada for a fixed parod. The Bank may withdraw from s contractesl obligation for the undreem parion of agroed
overdrafl imils by giving reasonable nofce to the customar,

28, Ralated parties

Holding compainy Bank af Indie. india

Affiliatas Bark of India. LISA
Bank af India. Franca
Bark af India, Uk

Bark of India, Kirya
Bark af India, Irdia

Mombars of key managomant Vikaah Krishag (up le Manch 3, 2023)
Barjan Kumar (up io January 4, 2023
Sameer Rajan Behera (from January &, 2023)
sarjay Kumar Knemia (from March 4, 2023}
Hayenga Rosafll Maboumba
Momica Muberi Kaliko

Related party transactions

ey management compensation

Man-Execulive Diraclors 2,838 4, B

Emaculive Directomns Fih 1Az BAT anT

Ralated party balancas

Dise from group companies

Bank of India, UK 134 432 81,543

Bank of Indla, USA 3,527 355 1,038 562

Barik of india, France 11B,0BT G982

Bank of Indla, Kenya 1,608 4 A

Bank of India, Inda 3,857 33,32

Due io growp companies

Bank of India, LSA (AT 24T 360) (12,407 500)
Bank of India, LK {29,802 542) (44, 312500}

27. Commitmants
Authorised caplial expandiiurs

Thare wenz no malarial capital commitments in both currant year and prior year.
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28, Ewenis after the reporting pariod

Subseqguent to the year end, on January 4, 2023 the shareholders of the Bank approved conversien of existing retained
aarnings of LUShs 26,500,000 thousand inlo paid-up capéta’ by way of issuance of bonus shares

The managament of the bank ara not aware of any évenis alier the reporting period; which may have & significant imzact an
the opemational existence or on tha finencisl perorrance of the Bank far the year,

29, Lease labillthes

Thae Bank leases varous branches and ofher presmises under lease amangamenis o mest |8 operationsl business
requiremanis, Currantly, the bank doss not have amy meterial sublassing arrangements. Leasa kabilities represents the
minimem lease payments undar the Isase, descoundsd at the incremantal bomowing rate of the Barnk

Minimum lease paymants dus
- within one yaar 12 0n2 2,502,989
= in sacand bo fifth year iIncusve 4 224 729 2 E48 0T
- later than Fve yaars 559,518 2008851
B 168 129 7 a0a 447
legs: fuliwe inance charges (524819 (BAE_180)
Prazent valua of minimum |leass payments 5541510 6,223,267
Present valus of minimum lease payments dus
- within ane yaar 1221, 791 2502 9158
- In gEcand ko ifth year incusve 1,665,034 2. 113,978
- later than fiye years 553,785 1,516,374

5,641,510 6,223,287

Movament in lease labilities

Al the start of tha year 223 267 8,385,090
Adgitora 302401 1,084,350
Imlarest axpansa 183,846 206,181
Lesne payriants during the yasr (1.300,748) (1,202 .405)
Diaracognition of lsasas - (170,549}
Foraign exchange differences 212,644 *

5,641,510 8223, 267

30 Comparative figures

Praviaus yem's figures have bean reclassified! regrouped in order to make tham comparabla wih hat of curenl financial
period, wheraver Necesaary




